






Exemption claimed  

As a decision maker, I am required to determine whether the information within scope is 
in the public interest to release. To make this decision, I am required to: 

• assess whether the information would be contrary to public interest to disclose as 
per Schedule 1 of the Act, and 

• perform the public interest test as set out in section 17 of the Act by balancing the 
factors favouring disclosure and factors favouring non-disclosure in Schedule 2. 

The public interest information under schedule 2 of the Act 

The Act has a presumption in favour of disclosure. As a decision maker I am required to 
decide where, on balance, public interest lies. As part of this process, I must consider 
factors favouring disclosure and nondisclosure. 

In Hogan v Hinch (2011) 243 CLR 506, [31] French CJ stated that when ‘used in a statute, 
the term [public interest] derives its content from “the subject matter and the scope and 
purpose” of the enactment in which it appears’. Section 17(1) of the Act sets out the test, 
to be applied to determine whether disclosure of information would be contrary to the 
public interest. These factors are found in subsection 17(2) and Schedule 2 of the Act.  

Taking into consideration the information contained in the documents found to be within 
the scope of your request, I have identified that the following public interest factors are 
relevant to determine if release of the information contained within this document is 
within the ‘public interest’. 

Factors favouring disclosure in the public interest: 

(a) disclosure of the information could reasonably be expected to do any of the following: 

(i) promote open discussion of public affairs and enhance the government’s 
accountability. 

(ii) contribute to positive and informed debate on important issues or matters of 
public interest. 

(iii) inform the community of the government’s operation, including policies, 
guidelines and codes of conduct followed by the government in its dealings with 
members of the community. 

I have placed substantial weight on the above factors favouring disclosure. It is 
reasonable to expect that this information would enhance debate and inform members of 
the community about government operations when dealing with Community Councils. 
Additionally, this information may be of interest to the Canberra community and how 
funds within Community Councils are reported under the Associations Incorporation Act 
1991.  

Factors favouring nondisclosure in the public interest: 

(a) disclosure of the information could reasonably be expected to do any of the following: 

(ii) prejudice the protection of an individual’s right to privacy or any other right under 
the Human Rights Act 2004. 

(xi) prejudice trade secrets, business affairs or research of an agency or person. 



Having reviewed the documents, I consider that the protection of an individual’s right to 
privacy, especially the identity of frontline ACT Government employees, is a significant 
factor. When considering the information and factors in favour of nondisclosure, I have 
also considered the personal details of committee members within the material (that are 
not in the public domain), could prejudice the protection of these individuals’ right to 
privacy or any other right under the Human Rights Act 2004. I am satisfied that this factor 
favouring nondisclosure should be afforded significant weight as it relates to the 
individuals’ privacy. 

I have also refused the release of some photographs submitted by council groups as part 
of their annual reporting, (that are not already in the public domain), under Schedule 2.2 
(a)(ii) of the Act. I am satisfied that this factor favouring nondisclosure should be afforded 
significant weight as it relates to the protection of privacy of the individuals within the 
images. 

I have placed significant weight on the factor for nondisclosure of banking information of 
the Community Councils, as I believe this information is not in the public interest to 
release. Banking information is deemed confidential commercial information, the release 
of which could prejudice competitive commercial activities of an entity.  

Having applied the test outlined in section 17 of the Act and deciding that release of 
personal information contained in the documents is not in the public interest to release, I 
have chosen to redact this specific information in accordance with section 50(2). Noting 
the pro-disclosure intent of the Act, I am satisfied that redacting only the information that 
I believe is not in the public interest to release will ensure that the intent of the Act is met 
and will provide you with access to the majority of the information held by CMTEDD 
within the scope of your request. 

Charges 

Pursuant to Freedom of Information (Fees) Determination 2017 (No 2) processing charges 
are applicable for this request because the total number of pages to be released to you 
exceeds the charging threshold of 50 pages. However, the charges have been waived in 
accordance with section 105 (1)(a) of the Act. 

Online publishing – Disclosure Log 

Under section 28 of the Act, CMTEDD maintains an online record of access applications 
called a disclosure log. Your original access application and my decision will be published 
on the CMTEDD disclosure log. Your personal contact details will not be published. You 
may view CMTEDD disclosure log at 
https://www.cmtedd.act.gov.au/functions/foi/disclosure-log-2023 

Ombudsman Review 

My decision on your access request is a reviewable decision as identified in Schedule 3 of 
the Act. You have the right to seek Ombudsman review of this outcome under section 73 
of the Act within 20 working days from the day that my decision is sent to you, or a longer 
period allowed by the Ombudsman.   
 



We recommend using this form Applying for an Ombudsman Review to ensure you 
provide all of the required information.  Alternatively, you may write to the Ombudsman 
at:  

The ACT Ombudsman 
GPO Box 442 
CANBERRA ACT 2601 

Via email: actfoi@ombudsman.gov.au  

ACT Civil and Administrative Tribunal (ACAT) Review 

Under section 84 of the Act, if a decision is made under section 82(1) on an Ombudsman 
review, you may apply to the ACAT for review of the Ombudsman decision. Further 
information may be obtained from the ACAT at:  

ACT Civil and Administrative Tribunal 
15 Constitution Avenue 
GPO Box 370 
Canberra City ACT 2601  
Telephone: (02) 6207 1740  
http://www.acat.act.gov.au/ 

Should you have any queries in relation to your request please contact me by telephone 
on 6207 7754 or email CMTEDDFOI@act.gov.au.  

Yours sincerely, 

 
Katharine Stuart 

Information Officer 
Chief Minister, Treasury and Economic Development Directorate 

28 July 2023 
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Committee's Report
Belconnen Community Council
For the year ended 30 June 2021

Committee's Report

Your committee members submit the financial report of Belconnen Community Council for the financial year ended 30 June
2021.

Committee Members

The names of committee members throughout the year and at the date of this report are:

 Committee Member  Position  Date Started

 Glen Hyde   Chair 15/09/2020

 Clayton Browne   Deputy Chair  15/09/2020

 Maree Pavloudis   Secretary/Treasurer 15/09/2020

 Charles Thomas  Public Officer 15/09/2020

 Mary van de Graaf     Committee Member   15/09/2020

 Elias Hallaj  Committee Member 20/12/2020

 Matt Watts   Committee Member 15/09/2020

 Adriana Bianchini   Committee Member 14/11/2020 - Resigned April 2021

 Allan Hollink  Committee Member  30/06/2021

 Tristan Hollink  Committee Member  30/06/2021

Principal Activities

The role of the Belconnen Community Council is to focus the local community effort into a cohesive, strong and active forum
that is truly representative of the people of Belconnen

Significant Changes

There have been no significant changes in the association during the year.

Operating Result

The surplus for the financial year amounted to $5,305.08.

Going Concern

This financial report has been prepared on a going concern basis which contemplates continuity of normal business activities
and the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities in the ordinary course of business. The ability of the association to
continue to operate as a going concern is dependent upon the ability of the association to generate sufficient cashflows from
operations to meet its liabilities. The members of the association believe that the going concern assumption is appropriate.
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Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Members of the Committee on:

_______________________

Glen Hyde (Chair)
Date:

_______________________

Maree Pavloudis (Treasurer)
Date:
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The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. These statements should be read in conjunction with the attached
compilation report.
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Income and Expenditure Statement
Belconnen Community Council
For the year ended 30 June 2021

2021

Income
Grant Operating 12,821

Total Income 12,821

Gross Surplus 12,821

Other Income
Interest Income 6

Total Other Income 6

Expenditure
Advertising 308

Bank Charges 12

Branding Materials 1,208

Computer/Website Administration 1,158

Equipment Hire/Storage 3,233

Food/Drinks 250

Google Suite 525

Mobile Phones 828

Total Expenditure 7,522

Current Year Surplus/ (Deficit) 5,305
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The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. These statements should be read in conjunction with the attached
compilation report.

Financial Report Belconnen Community Council                                                                                                                                                                                                               Page 6 of 13

Assets and Liabilities Statement
Belconnen Community Council
As at 30 June 2021

30 JUN 2021

Assets
Current Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents 14,161
Total Current Assets 14,161

Non-Current Assets

Equipment
Equipment 2,000
Total Equipment 2,000

Total Non-Current Assets 2,000

Total Assets 16,161

Net Assets 16,161

Member's Funds
Capital Reserve 16,161

Total Member's Funds 16,161
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These notes should be read in conjunction with the attached compilation report.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Belconnen Community Council
For the year ended 30 June 2021

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements are special purpose financial statements prepared in order to satisfy the financial reporting
requirements of the Associations Incorporation Act [ACT]. The committee has determined that the association is not a reporting
entity.

The financial statements have been prepared on a cash basis and are based on historic costs and do not take into account
changing money values or, except where stated specifically, current valuations of non-current assets.

The following significant accounting policies, which are consistent with the previous period unless stated otherwise, have been
adopted in the preparation of these financial statements. 

Income Tax

The association is exempt for Income Tax under relevant legislation

Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

Office equipment is carried at cost. No depreciation has been calculated.

Cash on Hand

Cash on hand includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks, and other short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less. 

Revenue and Other Income

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable after taking into account any trade discounts
and volume rebates allowed. For this purpose, deferred consideration is not discounted to present values when recognising
revenue.

Interest revenue is recognised using the effective interest method, which for floating rate financial assets is the rate inherent in
the instrument. Dividend revenue is recognised when the right to receive a dividend has been established.

Grant and donation income is recognised when the entity obtains control over the funds, which is generally at the time of
receipt.

If conditions are attached to the grant that must be satisfied before the association is eligible to receive the contribution,
recognition of the grant as revenue will be deferred until those conditions are satisfied.

Financial Assets

Investments in financial assets are initially recognised at cost, which includes transaction costs, and are subsequently measured
at fair value, which is equivalent to their market bid price at the end of the reporting period. Movements in fair value are
recognised through an equity reserve.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

These notes should be read in conjunction with the attached compilation report.
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2021

2. Cash on Hand
Beyond Bank Account 14,161

Total Cash on Hand 14,161

2021

3. Plant and Equipment, Motor Vehicles
Plant and Equipment

Plant and Equipment at Cost 2,000
Total Plant and Equipment 2,000

Total Plant and Equipment, Motor Vehicles 2,000
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Movements in Equity
Belconnen Community Council
For the year ended 30 June 2021

2021

Equity
Opening Balance 10,856

Increases
Profit for the Period 5,305
Total Increases 5,305

Total Equity 16,161

 
9



Financial Report Belconnen Community Council                                                                                                                                                                                                            Page 10 of 13

True and Fair Position
Belconnen Community Council
For the year ended 30 June 2021

Annual Statements Give True and Fair View of Financial Position and Performance of the Association

We, Glen Hyde and Maree Pavloudis, being members of the committee of Belconnen Community Council, certify that –

The statements attached to this certificate give a true and fair view of the financial position and performance of Belconnen
Community Council during and at the end of the financial year of the association ending on 30 June 2021.

                                                

Glen Hyde (Chair)

Dated:     

                                                 

Maree Pavloudis (Treasurer)

Dated:       
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Auditor's Report
Belconnen Community Council
For the year ended 30 June 2021

Independent Auditors Report to the members of the Association

We have audited the accompanying financial report, being a special purpose financial report, of Belconnen Community
Council (the association), which comprises the committee’s report, the assets and liabilities statement as at 30 June 2021, the
income and expenditure statement for the year then ended, notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information, and the certification by members of the committee on the annual statements giving a true and
fair view of the financial position and performance of the association.

Committee’s Responsibility for the Financial Report

The committee of Belconnen Community Council is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report,
and has determined that the basis of preparation described in Note 1 is appropriate to meet the requirements of the
Associations Incorporation Act 1991 and is appropriate to meet the needs of the members. The committee’s responsibility also
includes such internal control as the committee determines is necessary to enable the preparation and fair presentation of a
financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We have conducted our audit in
accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Those standards require that we comply with relevant ethical requirements
relating to audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial report is
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial report.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial report, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the association’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial report, in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the association’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the committee, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial report presents fairly, in all material respects (or gives a true and fair view –refer to the applicable
state/territory Act), the financial position of Belconnen Community Council as at 30 June 2021 and (of) its financial performance
for the year then ended in accordance with the accounting policies described in Note 1 to the financial statements, and the
requirements of the Associations Incorporations Act 1991.
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Certificate By Members of the Committee
Belconnen Community Council
For the year ended 30 June 2021

I, Maree Pavloudis of  certify that:

1. I attended the annual general meeting of the association held on 21/09/2021

2. The financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2021 were submitted to the members of the association at its annual
general meeting.

                                            

Maree Pavloudis (Treasurer)

Dated:   
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ANNEXURE A 

 
COMMUNITY COUNCIL END OF YEAR REPORT 

 
(Due 30 September 2021) 

 
 
Community Council Name 
Belconnen Community Council Incorporated. 
 
Council Objectives/ Mission Statement 
Our role is to foster Belconnen’s community identity and be a strong voice for the community. 
 
Highlights 
Our activities have focussed on consolidating the Belconnen community’s views on a number of 
development applications and facilitating associated consultation processes. 

• We distributed information on key outcomes for the Kippax Redevelopment Plan, progress 
on the Giralang Shops precinct and updated proposals for the sale of five key blocks within 
the Town Centre.  

• We welcomed the start of work on the Gundaroo Drive duplication, the “Boardwalk” and 
associated paths around the Belconnen Arts Centre, and the Belconnen Trunk Sewer project.  

• There have been a number of challenges for businesses within the district given the impacts 
of the initial COVID-19 lockdown and the number of office workers (particularly public 
servants) working from home.  

• We were also able to promote and assist in a small community project in Melba called 
SMILES, which is an attempt by local residents to convert a neglected space into an 
inclusive park for families to enjoy. This is example demonstrates one of the primary 
reasons why we exist; to promote the voice of the community to government on matters that 
mean the most to them.  

• We have hosted multiple meetings on the Kippax Group Centre Master Plan, including the 
alternate plan put forward by the owners of Kippax Fair, and there was much discussion of 
proposals to remove open space around the precinct without replacement.  
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The much-discussed Kippax Redevelopment has resulted in several stress points for both the 
ACT Government and the community, and there are valuable lessons that have been learned along 
the way. There is unfounded optimism amongst some in the community that the green space 
rezoned by Variation 361 can be retained in its entirety (i.e. its current state). We have learnt 
through this process that the public messaging in the post-decision period needs to be clearer, and 
that position is now better understood by both the relevant government agencies and the 
Belconnen Community Council. 

Similarly, the decision to not extend the contract for Green Waste recycling at Parkwood became an 
issue without peer. Despite the need to cease operations at that site having been public knowledge 
for some time (in support of the Ginninderry development), the removal of the Parkwood facility 
without a nearby replacement would have added to the costs of Belconnen residents’ green waste 
management and potentially increased the rate of illegal dumping of green waste. It came as no 
surprise to see the community to encourage the ACT Government to change its mind and continue 
the service until a more suitable site can be identified and brought into operation. It was heartening 
to see all sides of politics rally behind our community at its hour of need, and we thank every 
person who contributed to such a sensible outcome. We look forward to working with the 
ACT Government to assist in the continuation of this important service.  

Whatever the issues, the Belconnen Community Council will be there to ensure we remain the 
“Jewel in Canberra’s Crown”.  

Council Meetings 
Subject to COVID-19 restrictions, we held a number of in-person meetings throughout 2020 and 
2021. Most members are exercising a modicum of caution and continuing to connect online; 
meetings will continue under this format for the foreseeable future or until health orders change. 
The Belconnen Community Council held the following meetings during the 2020-21 funding year: 
 
Tuesday 28 July 2020 
Via Zoom 
7pm 

• 18 attendees including 5 committee members and 1 MLA.  
• Key agenda items were updates from Transport Canberra, ICON Water and Evo Energy. 

 
Tuesday 18 August 2020 
Via Zoom 
7pm 

• 21 attendees including 5 committee members and 2 MLAs.  
• Key agenda item was TCCS - Canberra’s Urban Forest Strategy 2020-2045. 

 
Tuesday 15 September 2020 
Via Zoom  
7pm 

• 24 attendees including 5 committee members and 1 MLA.  
• Key agenda item was conducting the AGM. 
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Thursday 8 October 2020 
Via Zoom 
7pm 

• 36 attendees including 8 candidates. 
• Ginninderra Candidates Forum – ACT Election. 

 
Tuesday 20 October 2020 
Via Zoom 
7pm 

• 15 attendees including 5 committee members and 1 MLA. 2 guests from Belconnen Fresh 
Food Markets. 

• Key agenda item was the Kippax update. 
 
Tuesday 16 February 2021 
Via Zoom 
7pm 

• 22 attendees including 5 committee members and 3 MLAs.  
• Key agenda items were Canberra Hospital Master Plan, Belconnen Town Centre land sales 

presentation from SLA. 
 
Tuesday 16 March 2021 
Raiders Belconnen Kippax, Zoom and Facebook 
7pm 

• 58 attendees including 6 committee members and 4 MLAs. 
• Key agenda items were Kippax Centre Expansion Plan and Belconnen Community Council 

Budget submission. 
 
Tuesday 20 April 2021 
Via Zoom 
7pm 

• 16 attendees including 5 committee members and 3 MLAs.  
• Key agenda items were Canberra Hospital Master Plan Phase 2 and an update from ICON 

Water. 
 
Tuesday 18 May 2021 
Via Zoom 
7pm 

• 8 attendees including 3 committee members and 3 MLAs.  
• Key agenda items were Belconnen Town Centre Land Release phase 2 presentation and 

final Belconnen Community Council Budget submission. 
 
Tuesday 15 June 2021 
Holy Cross Church Emu Bank 
7pm 

• 26 attendees including 4 committee members and 1 MLA.  
• Key agenda items were Green Waste Recycling facility closure, SLA Place Design brief and 

ICON Water BTS update. 
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Other Activities  
We decided to revitalise some aspects of our kit and branding in this period. This came in handy for 
the SMILES activity at Melba and for our last in face meeting in June. We have identified gaps in 
our sound and general audio, which we will address gradually over the 2021-22 period. 
 
We have also spent some time in the media talking about why we are the most attractive district for 
people to live, work and play. We joined the local ABC team at Charnwood Shops to promote who 
we are and what we do, talked about every issue identified throughout the year and celebrated 
Belconnen’s 55th birthday. The common theme troubling our community is the balancing act of 
development activities versus rates. We will continue to provide feedback to the ACT Government 
on community expectation and quality of services. 
 
COVID-19 continues to have an impact on how we connect with each other, but again technology 
has been both friend and foe. While we are all adjusting to those ongoing challenges, we are 
expanding our committee and the skillsets required to meet those into the future. 
 
Future Activities 
As we work our way through the challenges of a COVID-19 world, we must maintain our focus on 
bringing community and government closer. There is no doubt we need the investment and effort of 
the ACT Government as we look to support an ever-growing population in the Belconnen district; 
but we also need that of the private sector to help us build, maintain and sustain important 
community infrastructure across our patch. These responsibilities are not mutually exclusive; but 
there are better ways for all three sectors (community, government and private sector) to achieve the 
best for those who live, work and play here. We have seen small business in the district fall 
dramatically since we locked down in 2020; many have not returned and those who have do not 
appear to have recovered anywhere near where they need to be. We would like to provide channels 
for our local businesses to engage with government and our community as we look beyond 2021.  
 
We are also implementing a plan to celebrate the Belconnen district’s 60th birthday in 2026. 
 
We appreciate the financial support and access to government provided to us by the 
ACT Government, and we will continue to provide a safe and respectful environment to guarantee 
participation by all in our community. 
 
Social Media 
We provide links to our social media and website for any documentation you wish to examine: 

• www.belcouncil.org.au 
• https://www.facebook.com/belcouncil  
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Annexure A  
  

Community Council End of Year Report 

(due 30 September 2021) 

 

  

Community Council Name: Gungahlin Community Council Incorporated  

  

Council Objectives/ Mission Statement 
Provide a local forum in a non-political environment for Gungahlin residents & 

businesses can express their aspirations, concerns and suggestions. 

• Provide a strong local voice. 

• Address matters of local concern. 

• Ensure that legislators and officials are informed of community needs and 

expectations. 

• Foster a community identity. 

• Communicate issues locally and regionally. 

• Initiate, support or undertake any appropriate action advantageous for the 

community. 

• Continue to represent for all facilities and services expected by the community. 

• Seek to maintain and improve the quality of life in Gungahlin. 

• Provide a deterrent against party politics impeding or overriding community 

wishes 

Extracted from Gungahlin Community Council (GCC) Constitution 

(https://gcc.asn.au/documents/2017/GCC%20Constitution.pdf)  

Highlights   
Planning issues have dominated the work of the GCC throughout this reporting period. 

This included responding to numerous significant development applications for “mixed-

use” developments within the Gungahlin Town Centre, culminating in a major campaign 

regarding the failure of the ACT Government to deliver a viable Town Centre for the 

District of Gungahlin.  

 

Consistent with community feedback, the GCC has for several years expressed concerns 

regarding the mixed-use developments in the Town Centre.  

 

Of particular note was the GCC’s opposition to the high-rise residential project known as 

“The Establishment” (formerly “Air Towers”) on Block 6 Section 224 Gungahlin. 

Although an amended Development Application for this site was declined in 2019-20, 

the proponent successfully sought to have this decision reconsidered and the development 

is now proceeding. 

 

Since 2016 the GCC has sought improvements to the Planning System and related 

processes to improve the viability of the Gungahlin Town Centre. All the larger-scale 

18



   

  2  

  

mixed-use developments proposed in recent years have been almost entirely residential 

units with minimal tenancies to support the retail commercial, entertainment, and 

community services Gungahlin residents expect. The Planning Directorate’s response to 

this advocacy, Draft Variation 364 (DV364), proposes significant reductions in the 

amount of space reserved for commercial (office) space, allows even more “mixed use” 

(ie. residential) throughout much of the town centre and changes the provisions for 

community facilities.  

 

These issues were key parts of a motion passed in the ACT Assembly in February 

(sponsored by Suzanne Orr, MLA) calling on the ACT government to “support the further 

development of the Gungahlin region and town centre, ensuring that there are additional 

employment opportunities in Gungahlin”. 

 

The GCC wrote to the Planning Minister in March seeking clarification regarding the 

progress of DV364 and actions in response to the motion, inviting him to attend our 14 

April public. The Minister was represented by senior staff from EPSDD at that meeting 

which raised additional concerns about whether the current planning system will deliver 

a viable town centre for Gungahlin. 

 

Consequently, in April, the GCC again wrote to the Minister for Planning, as well as the 

Housing and Development Minister and CEO of the Suburban Land Agency (SLA), 

calling for the sales of land in the Gungahlin Town Centre to be suspended to prevent the 

remaining land in the town centre being sold off under a planning system and process that 

was failing.  

 

The GCC received a response from the SLA indicating they were committed to an 

“engagement on how the sale of these blocks are brought to the market, the provision of 

open space and interface with the linear park and future public realm”. DV364 has been 

referred to the Standing Committee on Planning.  

 

With the support of Andrew Braddock, MLA, a petition calling for land sales to be 

suspended, and an additional motion in the ACT Assembly were also initiated. This 

advocacy will be a major part of the GCC’s work into 2021-22. 

 

The GCC also made a representation in response to the Jacka stage 2 estate development 

plan Development Application, citing concerns with encroachment on the Elm Grove 

site, loss of trees and weak community engagement. 

 

The GCC has continued to highlight the significant shortfall in the provision of 

community, sport and recreation in Gungahlin. This has included meetings with relevant 

ministers, presentations by EPSDD on the proposed community sites in Casey, and 

engagements with sporting and community groups. The Planning Directorate initiated an 

Assessment of Recreation and Sporting Facilities in Gungahlin that the GCC has some 

concerns regarding as it is focussed on specific locations (Casey, Town Centre) rather 

than identifying the total demand for community services across Gungahlin. 
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The Gungahlin 50m pool failed in the first half of 2020, developing significant leaks. The 

GCC engaged with the Sporting and Recreation Minister to facilitate a community update 

and response to this issue. 

 

Throughout 2020-21 the GCC has highlighted the need for an expanded/improved 

Gungahlin police station and increased policing in Gungahlin in line with the district’s 

growth in population and footprint. 

 

In mid-2020 the GCC secured an ACT Events grant to support the 2020 Celebrate 

Gungahlin festival on behalf of the festival organising committee led by Belco Arts (who 

deliver the Gungahlin Arts Program) and including Communities @ Work, Northside 

Community Service and Barnardos. The festival was postponed until March 2021 and 

run as a series of popup events rather than a single gathering due to the COVID pandemic. 

 

In April the outcome of the sale of the Gold Creek Homestead site was announced after 

a high-quality community engagement process that directly informed the sales tender. 

The GCC looks forward to working with the successful tenderer, Lendlease, who will be 

constructing retirement living villas and an aged care facility on the site.  

 

All Gungahlin residences have the NBN delivered using Fibre-To-The-Premise (FTTP), 

apart from one small section of the suburb of Casey. The GCC has continued throughout 

2020-21 to advocate to have these homes which are served by Fibre-to-the-Node (FTTN), 

upgraded to a FTTP. 

 

Council Meetings  
Eleven (11) public meetings were held throughout the 2020-21 financial year on the 

second Wednesday of each month (apart from January) at 6:30pm. The meetings 

provide a forum for presentations to be made by various government Ministers and 

MLAs, ACT government representatives, property developers and other stakeholders in 

the Gungahlin community, and for feedback to be gathered and actioned by members of 

the GCC executive. In September the public meeting was conducted as an ACT 

Election “Meet the Candidates” Forum. 

 

Because of the social distancing measures imposed by the ACT Government in response 

to the COVID-19 pandemic the meetings held during 2020 were conducted online using 

the Zoom application, returning to face-to-face meetings at the Gungahlin Club (51 

Hinder St, Gungahlin) from December.  Both in-person and online meetings were 

streamed and saved on Facebook Live 

(https://www.facebook.com/watch/gungahlin/491715555333975/). Notification of 

public meetings continues to be communicated through the GCC website 

(www.gcc.asn.au), GCC mailing list, Twitter (@GungahlinCC) and Facebook 

(www.facebook.com/gungahlin). 
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Other activities   
 

Gungahlin Smoke Signals (Gunsmoke) newsletter #149 February was published in 2020-

21. This high quality newsletter is distributed electronically via the GCC web site 

(https://gcc.asn.au/gunsmoke/) using notifications posted through the GCC mailing list 

and FaceBook page. Limited copies of the newsletter are printed in hard copy form and 

distributed by the GCC executive through retail outlets and other venues in the Gungahlin 

region. Hard copies are available upon request. 

 

As at the AGM on 8 December 2021 there were 1,132 subscribers to the GCC email list 

(up 3% from previous year), and 3,003 Facebook users that Like the GCC Facebook page 

(up 9%) and 3,370 Followers (up 8%). 

 

In the lead-up to the ACT Election in October, the GCC highlighted its strategy and 

focus as part of its Expectations of Candidates (https://gcc.asn.au/act-election-2020-

expectations/): 

 

Throughout the year, the President, Vice President and other members of the GCC 

executive have represented the GCC through several media outlets – The Canberra 

Times, 2CC, ABC Local Radio, WIN News and ABC TV. The COVID pandemic 

reduced the number of ACT government consultations conducted over the reporting 

period. The GCC continued to contribute to the Territory Planning Systems Reform 

Project. 

The GCC is an active participant in the meetings of the Combined Community Council 

of the ACT and the Environment and Planning Forum (EPF) meetings hosted by 

EPSDD. 

Future activities  

The GCC will continue to engage the community and the relevant ACT government 

agencies to align the needs of Gungahlin residents with the policies and programs of the 

government based on the following framework: 

Planning and Community Engagement 

• Improve and enforce Planning Rules 

• Undertake community consultations early and meaningfully 

• Support recommendations of the Combined Community Councils 

Community Facilities 

• Address shortfall in sport, recreation and community services  

• Expand, improve and maintain green spaces 

• Establish community spaces at town centre, group and suburb levels 

• Facilitate more retirement and aged care facilities 

• Activate spaces through events, festivals, markets, etc. 

Employment 

• Halt the loss of town centre commercial space to mixed/residential  

22



   

  6  

  

• Actively attract more employers to Gungahlin 

Town Centre 

• Fix traffic flow and parking issues 

• Reconsider the employment and green space impact of DV364 

• Enable greater variety and quality of retail outlets 

• Improve active travel to/from town centre 

Transport 

• Complete road infrastructure including any remaining duplications 

• Improve commute times on public transport 

Public Safety 

• Upgrade police presence (staffing and station) 

• Fix town centre and traffic issues  

• Identify other road safety hotspots across Gungahlin 

• Address physical safety concerns (e.g. Yerrabi Pond lighting)  
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ANNEXURE B 

STATEMENT OF ACQUITTAL OF GRANT 

 

Due:    22 December 2021 

 

Recipient:  GUNGAHLIN COMMUNITY COUNCIL INC 

 

Amount:  $12,821 (GST exclusive) 

 

Prior Year Unacquitted Funds: $        or [‘Not applicable’] 

 

Date of Grant: ...../...../..... 

 

Purpose: The Funded Activity is specified in Schedule 2 of this Deed. 

 

I certify that the grant was expended for the above purpose, prior to the termination date, 

and in accordance with the Deed of Grant. 

  

I attach: Please tick 

1) A financial report. The financial report must include an income 

and expenditure statement highlighting the actual spending against 

the funds, including any particulars required in Schedule 3. 

 

2) Financial statements in support of the financial statement to be 

provided to the Contact Officer as soon as available. The financial 

statements must be audited by an Approved Auditor (as defined in 

the Deed of Grant). 

 

3) An end of year report in the format specified in Annexure A of 

this Deed. 

 

4) Evidence of acknowledgment of the Territory as specified in 

Schedule 1. 

 

 

Signed: .......... .............................................................. 

 

Name: ........................................................................................................................ 

      [Full Name] 

 

Date: ...../...../..... 

 

Position:   ………………………………………………………............................. 

   [Specify Chair/President/Treasurer/Secretary/Public Officer] 

 

Address: ………............................... 

 

Witness signature: …… ............................................................... 

 

Witness name: ………………………..................................................................... 

NOT APPLICABLE

PETER ELFORD

22  12  2021

PRESIDENT

FIONA WILKINSON
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Asset

Banking

1 1000 Cheque account 7 917

1 1400 Savings account 32 930
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Fixed Assets

1 2400 Office equipment & computers 1 339
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Current Liabilities
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Less Expense

Accounting fees 524 500

Advertising 1 476 400

Celebrate Gungahlin 2021 5 659 10 000

Community Sponsorship 1 500

General Expense 925

Gungahlin Festival sponsorship 5 000

Gunsmoke printing 2 958 4 500

nsurance 2 270 2 200

Polo Shirts 1 100 300

Venue Hire 626 3 000

Web Hosting 50
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Annexure A  
  

Community Council End of Year Report 

(due 30 September 2022) 

 

  

Community Council Name: Gungahlin Community Council Incorporated  

  

Council Objectives/ Mission Statement 
Briefly describe the goals and objectives of the Council. 

Provide a local forum in a non-political environment for Gungahlin residents & 

businesses can express their aspirations, concerns and suggestions. 

• Provide a strong local voice; address matters of local concern. 

• Ensure that legislators and officials are informed of community needs and 

expectations; foster a community identity. 

• Communicate issues locally and regionally. 

• Initiate, support or undertake any appropriate action advantageous for the 

community. 

• Continue to represent for all facilities and services expected by the community. 

• Seek to maintain and improve the quality of life in Gungahlin, and 

• Provide a deterrent against party politics impeding or overriding community 

wishes 

Extracted from Gungahlin Community Council (GCC) Constitution 

(https://gcc.asn.au/gcc/wp-content/uploads/2022/06/GCC-Constitution-

REFORMATTED-17062022.pdf)   

Highlights  
Describe the highlights of the past funding year, issues addressed and any new 

developments. 

 

Over the funding year the GCC has continued the campaign launched in April 2021 to 

address the lack of employment, retail, entertainment and community facilities and 

services in the Gungahlin Town Centre. Over 750 residents signed a petition sponsored 

by Andrew Braddock (Greens ML) tabled in the ACT Assembly in August 2021 calling 

for the suspension of lands sales until significant action was taken to address the 

community’s concerns. The Assembly also passed Andrew Braddock’s motion in August 

calling for substantive planning and land sales changes in the Gungahlin Town Centre, 

largely consistent with Suzanne Orr’s (Labour MLA for Yerrabi) motion in February 

2021.  

 

The Standing Committee on Planning, Transport and City Services continued its inquiry 

into Draft Variation to the Territory Plan 364 (DV364), which commenced in April 2021. 

The GCC made a written submission to the Inquiry and appeared at its hearings. The 
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inquiry’s report, published in September, acknowledged the GCC’s concerns, and its 

recommendations were broadly consistent with the actions proposed in our petition.  

 

The Minister for Planning, Mick Gentleman, released the ACT Government’s response 

to the petition and the two motions in November 2021. Of the 18 “asks” in the two 

motions, seven were agreed, two were noted, and nine were agreed-in-principle. The only 

“actions” the GCC identified were:  

• The Suburban Land Agency will undertake a place-making consultation for East 

Gungahlin, 

• A prospectus on the benefits of Gungahlin will be prepared for the Federal Finance 

minister, and 

• “Traffic flows will continue to be monitored, and any necessary improvements 

will be considered by Government” 

 

The “Gungahlin Town Centre – A Prospectus for APS [Australian Public Service] 

Investment” was published in March 2022. 

 

The ACT government’s formal response to the GCC’s campaign to improve the planning 

and development of the Gungahlin Town Centre concluded with the government’s 

response to the Assembly Planning Committee Inquiry into Draft Variation 364 in late 

February 2022. The Inquiry’s report was critical of many aspects of the town centre 

planning process, but unfortunately the report’s eight recommendations were narrow in 

scope and impact. The Planning Minister adopted a minimalist approach in responding to 

them, agreeing to implement just three (“agreeing-in-principle” to the others). This is an 

utterly underwhelming response to a long-standing issue important to the more than 

85,000 residents of Gungahlin. DV364, as amended, became Territory Plan variation 364 

on 24 June 2022. 

 

The GCC wrote to Transport Minister Chris Steele in October 2021 seeking more 

information on accidents and traffic hot spots in Gungahlin and a regular opportunity to 

meet with Transport Canberra and City Services (TCCS). This resulted in the ACT 

accident “2020 Intersection and Mid-block Ranking Report” report being made available 

and the scheduling of the first regular meeting with TCCS. 

 

The GCC was thrilled to be able to support the Rotary Club of Gungahlin’s initiative to 

establish a rotunda in the Yerrabi Pond park, which was opened with much fanfare on 11 

December 2021. Built with funding support from the Federal government (the 

Community Grant fund), Rotary and the GCC (from savings, not our annual grant), and 

with the support of ACT City Services this will be a welcome addition to the Yerrabi 

area.  

 

In April 2022 the GCC met with the ACT Health Minister and later in the year with the 

Health Directorate advocating for the proposed Northside hospital to be located in or near 

Gungahlin on the basis that it would greatly assist the social infrastructure of Gungahlin 

by increasing the employment base in the district and leverage the Light Rail investment. 

 

29



   

  3  

  

The ACT Government published the “Assessment of Community and Recreation 

Facilities in Gungahlin” in April 2022. The report highlights the chronic lack of facilities 

in Gungahlin – an issue raised frequently by the GCC both in our contribution to the 

Assessment and in other forums. Of the 28 types of community facilities identified in the 

assessment, 57% (16) are either not meeting demand (9) or require further investigation 

regarding demand (7) (over the period being considered, ie. out to 2045). It should be 

noted that some of the analysis could be improved, but the assessment is very important 

because “This report will inform further consultation, identification of priorities, and 

decision making by the ACT Government on a range of community and recreational 

facilities”.  

 

The Assessment has been highlighted by the ACT Government specifically in relation to 

two blocks in Casey identified for community use as well as for “100 residences and 

24,000m2 of commercial space”. Efforts to clarify how the Casey sites will be used 

continued through the year, via direct representations to the Planning Minister and 

through questions on notice in the Assembly from Leanne Castley (Liberal MLA, 

Yerrabi). 

 

The GCC has continued to advocate for upgrades of the police station in Gungahlin and 

an increased police presence in Gungahlin. The ACT government has committed to 

relocating some emergency services out of the Gungahlin Joint Emergency Services 

Centre to a new facility in Mitchell (SES and RFS) to make space for ACT policing during 

2022 and to conduct further master planning. The GCC has called for the planning to be 

accelerated and more police to be stationed in Gungahlin in public meetings and through 

representations to the Police Minister. 

 

On behalf of the Celebrate Gungahlin Festival committee, the GCC applied for and was 

successful in securing funding from Events ACT in December 2021 to support Celebrate 

Gungahlin, scheduled to be held in October 2022. 

 

All Gungahlin residences have the NBN delivered using Fibre-To-The-Premise (FTTP), 

apart from one small section of the suburb of Casey. The GCC’s ongoing advocacy 

resulted in a commitment from NBNco to include this portion of Casey in their Fibre-to-

the-Node (FTTN) to FTTP upgrade program. 

 

Representative Engagement 
Provide details of the diversity of views represented, including supporting data on 

methods/channels used to actively engage diverse groups within your region. 

The GCC operates multiple channels to engage the diverse Gungahlin community, these 

include: 

• A regular monthly public meeting – detailed in following section 

• A website (http://www.gcc.asn.au), used to share submissions, articles and 

correspondence related to the GCC’s activities. Visitors to the website can 

comment on articles posted and the GCC can also be contacted through the web 

page. 
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• Canberra Business Chamber Precinct Meetings 

• Celebrate Gungahlin Committee  

Council Meetings  
Table of Council meetings held during the funding year including the below for each 

meeting: 

• Date 

• Location 

• Time 

• Number of people attending, specifying number of committee members and 

number of guests 

• Details of Key Agenda Item, and guest speaker etc. 

 

Eleven (11) public meetings were held throughout the 2021-22 financial year on the 

second Wednesday of each month (apart from January) at 6:30pm. The meetings 

provide a forum for presentations to be made by various government Ministers and 

MLAs, ACT government representatives, property developers and other stakeholders in 

the Gungahlin community, and for feedback to be gathered and actioned by members of 

the GCC executive. Each public meeting includes a standing item for the GCC to 

provide an update on activities since the previous meeting. 

 

Because of the social distancing measures imposed by the ACT Government in response 

to the COVID-19 pandemic several of the meetings held during 2021-22 were conducted 

online using the Zoom application. Face-to-face meetings were held at the Eastlake 

Gungahlin Club (51 Hinder St, Gungahlin).  Both in-person and online meetings were 

streamed and saved on Facebook Live 

(https://www.facebook.com/watch/gungahlin/491715555333975/). Notification of 

public meetings is communicated through the GCC website (www.gcc.asn.au), GCC 

mailing list, Twitter (@GungahlinCC) and Facebook (www.facebook.com/gungahlin). 
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Other activities   
Provide details of activities, in addition to the meetings above, which the Recipient has 

implemented to engage with the community broadly and inclusively to fulfil the its 

obligations under the Funded Activity. Please provide details of the activity including: 

• Time, date and location of the activity 

• Nature of the activity 

• How the community was engaged or how the activity was promoted (including 

communication channels used) 

• Numbers of attendees or participants 

• Summary of the activity’s outcomes (eg feedback received, decisions made etc). 

 

Future activities  
Provide an outline of planned activities or projects. 

The GCC will continue to engage the community and the relevant ACT government 

agencies to align the needs of Gungahlin residents with the policies and programs of the 

government based on the following framework: 

Planning and Community Engagement 

• Improve and enforce Planning Rules 

• Undertake community consultations early and meaningfully 

• Support recommendations of the Combined Community Councils 

Community Facilities 

• Address shortfall in sport, recreation and community services  

• Expand, improve and maintain green spaces 

• Establish community spaces at town centre, group and suburb levels 

• Facilitate more retirement and aged care facilities 

• Activate spaces through events, festivals, markets, etc. 

Employment 

• Halt the loss of town centre commercial space to mixed/residential  

• Actively attract more employers to Gungahlin 

Town Centre 

• Fix traffic flow and parking issues 

• Reconsider the employment and green space impact of DV364 

• Enable greater variety and quality of retail outlets 

• Improve active travel to/from town centre 

Transport 

• Complete road infrastructure including any remaining duplications 

• Improve commute times on public transport 

Public Safety 

• Upgrade police presence (staffing and station) 
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• Fix town centre and traffic issues  

• Identify other road safety hotspots across Gungahlin 

• Address physical safety concerns  
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ANNEXURE B 

STATEMENT OF ACQUITTAL OF GRANT 

 

Due:    22 September 2022 

 

Recipient:  GUNGAHLIN COMMUNITY COUNCIL INC 

 

Amount:  $12,821 (GST exclusive) 

 

Prior Year Unacquitted Funds: $        or [‘Not applicable’] 

 

Date of Grant: 15/11/2021..... 

 

Purpose: The Funded Activity is specified in Schedule 2 of this Deed. 

 

I certify that the grant was expended for the above purpose, prior to the termination date, 

and in accordance with the Deed of Grant. 

  

I attach: Please tick 

1) A financial report. The financial report must include an income 

and expenditure statement highlighting the actual spending against 

the funds, including any particulars required in Schedule 3. 

 

2) Financial statements in support of the financial statement to be 

provided to the Contact Officer as soon as available. The financial 

statements must be audited by an Approved Auditor (as defined in 

the Deed of Grant). 

 

3) An end of year report in the format specified in Annexure A of 

this Deed. 

 

4) Evidence of acknowledgment of the Territory as specified in 

Schedule 1.

 

 

Signed: .............. ......................................................... 

 

Name: ........................................................................................................................ 

      [Full Name] 

 

Date: ...../...../..... 

 

Position:   ………………………………………………………............................. 

   [Specify Chair/President/Treasurer/Secretary/Public Officer] 

 

Address: …............................... 

 

Witness signature: … ............................................................... 

 

Witness name: ………………………..................................................................... 

PETER ELFORD

27 11  2022

TREASURER

FIONA WILKINSON
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Gungahlin Community Council Inc
PO Box 260, GUNGAHLIN, ACT, 2912

Balance sheet report
Cash mode
30 Jun 2022

Total

Asset

1-0001 Banking

1-1000 Cheque account 18,379.67

1-1400 Savings account 13,581.71

Total Banking 31,961.38

1-0003 Fixed Assets

1-2400 Office equipment & computers 3,759.35

Total Fixed Assets 3,759.35

Total Asset 35,720.73

Liability

2-0002 Current Liabilities

2-2200 GST collected 5,196.56

2-2400 GST paid (11,695.05)

22420 GST clearing (0.32)

Total Current Liabilities (6,498.81)

Total Liability (6,498.81)

Net Assets 42,219.54

Equity

3-0001 Current Earnings

3-1800 Current year earnings (3,494.89)

Total Current Earnings (3,494.89)

3-0002 Retained Earnings

3-1600 Retained earnings 35,714.43

Total Retained Earnings 35,714.43

3-9999 Historical balancing 10,000.00

Total Equity 42,219.54

Gungahlin Community Council Inc | Balance sheet report | Generated 25 Oct 2022 1Page 1 of
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Gungahlin Community Council Inc
PO Box 260, GUNGAHLIN, ACT, 2912

Profit and loss report
Cash mode
01 Jul 2021 - 30 Jun 2022

Total

Actual Budget

Income

4-1200 Government Grants 28,785 30 28,785.00

4-1700 Community Panel Allowance 363.64 400.00

Total Income 29,148.94 29,185.00

Cost of Sales 0.00 0.00

Gross Profit 29,148.94 29,185.00

Expense

6-1000 Accounting fees 545.45 600.00

6-1200 Advertising 90.91 200.00

6-2500 Gungahlin Festival sponsorship 5,000.00 5,000.00

6-2501 Celebrate Gungahlin 2021 3,230.00 3,230.00

6-2510 Community Sponsorship 8,500.00 8,500.00

6-2600 Gunsmoke printing 7,439 26 7,000.00

6-2800 Insurance 2,410.00 2,600.00

6-3400 Meeting expenses 521 59 1,500.00

6-4200 Office Admin 180.00 -

6-5220 Subscriptions 208.00 230.00

6-5600 Telephone 90.91 -

6-6601 Celebrate Gungahlin 2022 4,430.00 -

Total Expense 32,646.12 28,860.00

Operating Profit (3,497.18) 325.00

Other Income

8-1200 Interest income - Online Saver a/c 2 29 -

Total Other Income 2.29 0.00

Other Expense 0.00 -

Net Profit (3,494.89) 325.00

Gungahlin Community Council Inc | Profit and loss report | Generated 25 Oct 2022 1Page 1 of
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Community Council End of Year Report: 2020-2021 

Community Council Name: Inner South Canberra Community Council Incorporated 

1. Council Objectives/ Mission Statement 

1.1 Introduction 

The Inner South Canberra Community Council Incorporated (ISCCC) was established in July 2010 

with the primary aim of representing and promoting the interests of the residents of Inner South 

Canberra. Unlike other Community Councils in Canberra, the ISCCC is a ‘peak body’ for suburban 

residents groups in the Inner South and the majority of community interaction occurs through these 

groups, assisted by ISCCC funding and other support. 

 

1.2 Objects and Purposes of Association 

The constitutional objects of the Inner South Canberra Community Council are: 

(a) To protect and enhance the amenity and environmental community well-being of Inner South 

Canberra residents and the broader community; 

 

(b) To promote and represent Inner South Canberra residents in respect of the above; 

(c) To actively promote communication and coordination among residents and local community 

groups; 

 

(d) To contribute to the planning of Inner South Canberra, consistent with the above objectives; and 

(e) To assist in ensuring all groups, especially the more vulnerable, are adequately represented. 

1.3 Relationship of ISCCC and local residents ’groups 

The governance arrangements of the Council recognise and respect the vital and enduring role  

played by existing residents associations in advancing the interests of the residents of their suburbs. 

 These arrangements reflect the intention that the Council complement and assist rather than 

 duplicate or supplant, the role of these associations. 

 

To this end, the Council focuses its energies on matters of common interest to Inner South Canberra 

as a whole. 
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2. Highlights of the year 

Planning and development issues continued to occupy much time at ISCCC public meetings and in 

submissions and other activities during the year. 

The table in Section 3 on Council meetings summarises the details of our Public Meetings, AGM and 

Committee meetings held in 2020-21. All meetings are open to the public and advertised broadly by 

broadcast emails, on Twitter, on Facebook, on radio, newspaper articles, on the ISCCC website and 

in the ISCCC newsletters.  Of these 2 were physical meetings, 8 were online zoom meetings; and 4 

were offered as both physical and online meetings.  

We held our public meetings and council meetings in 2020-21 as either as physical meetings or via 

the online zoom platform according to the prevailing health restrictions.  We will continue doing this 

as the need arises.  

Issues that our meetings focussed on in 2020-21 included: 

• ISCCC Annual Planning meeting 

• Communication Strategies including a focus on improving external communication 

• Review of ISCCC Objectives, still in progress 

• Updates from Resident Groups and Associations 

• Updates from MLAs 

• Proposed Fyshwick Waste Facilities 

• Development of the Dairy Road Precinct 

• Proposed Urban Forest Strategy 

• Candidates Forum re ACT Assembly Election 

• The ACT Government review of planning 

• Canberra Hospital Master Plan 

• Transport including development of light rail 

• Revitalising Canberra Brickworks 

• Development of the Kingston Arts Precinct 

• Manor House 

• Redevelopment of Gowrie Court, Narrabundah 

 

 

2.1 Budget 

For the 2020-/21 period, the ISCCC has no unspent funds. The Grant was $12,821 and total 

expenditure was $14,209.  The 2020-21 ACT Government grant was fully spent.  
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2.2 Other 
 

ISCCC Committee members have participated in other recent initiatives and meetings, including: • 

Meetings of the Combined Community Councils and the ACT Environment and Planning Forum and 

between Community Councils and the ACT Government on ways of working together to enhance 

community engagement strategies. 

The ISCCC has used information gained through its 2019-20 online survey and community 

engagement to provide the following submissions during 2020-21 

• National Capital Authority (NCA) Draft Amendment 955 – North Curtin Diplomatic Estate and 

Urban Area – the Curtin horse paddocks (Jul 2020) 

• DV377 Dairy Road (Sep 2020)) 

• ACT Urban Forest Strategy (Sep 2020) 

• ISCCC Submission on EIS201900001: Proposed Hi-Quality Facility in Fyshwick (Sep 2020) 

• Planning and Development Amendment Act 2021 (Feb 2021) 

• Access to Old Development Applications and DA Exempt Knock Down Rebuilds (Feb 2021) 

• ACT Planning System Review and Reform Project (May 2021) 

2.3 Communication and community outreach 

The ISCCC has continued to build on our many communication channels complementing our public 

meetings, including a large email list reaching nearly 700 residents, communication through 

residents groups and their networks, a regular City News supplement, our Twitter site with 1200 

followers and Facebook page with nearly 800 followers. 

2.4 Future Activities 

The ISCCC will continue to hold public and committee meetings using the Zoom online platform in 

2021-22 while the ACT Health restrictions prevent in-person meetings. Issues that are expected to 

attract attention and interest include the ACT Planning Review, Inner South District Planning 

Strategy, Light Rail, Canberra Brickworks, Kingston Arts Precinct and Dairy Road. 

3. ISCCC Meetings 

The Council meetings have been open to the public and have been variously advertised by broadcast 

emails, on Twitter, on Facebook, on radio, newspaper articles, on the ISCCC website and in the ISCCC 

newsletter. The number listed below of guests attending our public forums is likely to understate 

actual numbers as many attendees chose not to sign the attendance registers. 
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Date Time Location Number 

committee 

attending 

Number 

guests 

attending 

Key Agenda Item, guest speaker 

etc. 

14 July 

2020 

7.00pm Zoom online 11 11 Planning Meeting with Fyshwick 

Business Association concerning 

the proposed Fyshwick Waste 

Facilities 

11 

August 

2020 

7.00pm Zoom online 13 

All online 

3 

All online 

Committee meeting 

Dairy Road Precinct 

General Business 

8 Sep 

2020 

7.00pm Zoom online 13 

All online 

 Committee meeting 

General Business 

20 Sep 4.00pm Harmonie 

German Club 

and Facebook 

broadcast 

Included in 

total 

estimate 

14 

Total in 

person 

attendees 

73 

Over 

13,000 

Facebook 

views 

ACT Election Candidates Forum 

with candidates for the Kurrajong 

electorate. Hosted by Genevieve 

Jacobs, Group Editor, Region 

Media. Streamed through the 

Region Media Facebook channel: 

https://www.isccc.org.au/politics-

in-the-pub-20-sep-20 

13 

October 

2020 

7.00pm Zoom online 14 

All online 

  Committee meeting 

General Business 

10 Nov 

2020 

7.00pm Eastlake 

Football Club 

 17 in 

person 

17 online 

Public Meeting and AGM 

10 Dec 

2020 

7.00pm Harmonie 

German Club 

14 

In person 

 Committee Meeting 

General Business 

9 Feb 

2021 

7pm Zoom Online 14 

All online 

 Committee Meeting 

General Business 
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Date Time Location Number 

committee 

attending 

Number 

guests 

attending 

Key Agenda Item, guest speaker 

etc. 

9 March 

2021 

7pm Eastlake 

Football Club 

and Zoom 

online 

14 57 

 

53 in 

person 

18 online 

Public Meeting 

Canberra Hospital Masterplan 

Local issues including Fyshwick 

Waste, Light Rail, Canberra 

Brickworks and Kingston Arts 

Precinct 

Opportunity to  hear from local 

MLAs and Resident Groups 

13 April 

2021 

7pm Eastlake 

Football Club 

 12 in 

person 

  Committee Meeting 

General Business 

11 May 

2021 

7pm Eastlake 

Football Club 

and Zoom 

online 

14 38 

37 in 

person 

15 online 

Public meeting 

Canberra Hospital Masterplan 

Phase 2 

Not for profit funeral home, 

Tender Funerals ACT Region 

Local issues including ACT 

Planning Review, Kingston Arts 

Precinct, Yarralumla Brickworks  

 

8 June 

2021 

7pm Zoom 

Online 

12 

All online 

 Committee Meeting 

General Business 

 

 

In addition, member Residents Groups have held suburban meetings as and when required. The 

ISCCC provides funding, sourced from its government grant, to assist them promote these 

meetings. 
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ISCCC Finances 

For period 1st July 2020 to 30th June 2021 

 

ISCCC Finances 

 

Income – ISCCC Funds 

Membership Fees $235.00 

Donations $50.00 

ACT Gov Grant $12,821.00 

 

Total: $13,106.00 

 

Expenditure – ISCCC Funds 

 

Grant Funds to Residents Groups $4,135.70 

Newsletter – Printing $3,045.90 

Web Site & Internet Services $1,275.65 

PO Box $136.00 

Insurance $1,871.43 

City News $1,980.00 

Meeting Costs $1,765.00 

 

Total: $14,209.68 

 

 

Opening and Closing Balances for ISCCC 

Opening Balance on 1st July 2020 $12,331.57 

Difference - $1,103.68 

 

Closing Balance on 30th June 2021 $11,227.89 
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Finances for Forrest Heritage Grant – HG19/15 

 

Income – Forrest Heritage Grant 

ACT Gov Heritage Grant - 2nd Instalment $7,197.00 

Sue Parr – Donation $605.50 

ACT Gov Heritage Grant – 3rd Instalment $5,398.00 

 

Total: $13,200.50 

 

Expenditure – Forrest Heritage Grant 

 

2nd Payment to Conservation Works P/L $23,750.10 

3rd Payment to Conservation Works P/L $11,983.40 

 

Total: $35,733.50 

 

 

Opening and Closing Balances for Heritage Grant – HG19/15 

Opening Balance on 1st July 2020 $22,533.00 

Difference - $22,533.00 

 

Closing Balance on 30th June 2021 $0.00 

 

 

 

 

 

Bank balance on 30th June 2021 

 

ISCCC Funds $11,227.89 
Forest Residents Heritage Grant Funds HG19/15 $0.00 

 
Total: $11,227.89 

 

David Johnstone 

Treasurer ISCCC – 3rd July 2021 

50






Community Council End of Year Report: 21-22


Community Council Name: Inner South Canberra Community Council Incorporated


1. Council Objectives/ Mission Statement


1.1 Introduction


The Inner South Canberra Community Council Incorporated (ISCCC) was established in July 2010

with the primary aim of representing and promoting the interests of the residents of Inner South 

Canberra. Unlike most other Community Councils in Canberra, the ISCCC is a !peak body’ for subur-
ban residents groups in the Inner South and a majority of community interaction occurs through 
these groups, assisted by ISCCC funding and other support. 

1.2 Objects and Purposes of Association


The constitutional objects of the Inner South Canberra Community Council are:


(a) To protect and enhance the amenity and environmental community well-being of Inner South

Canberra residents and the broader community; 

(b) To promote and represent Inner South Canberra residents in respect of the above;


(c) To actively promote communication and coordination among residents and local community

groups; 

(d) To contribute to the planning of Inner South Canberra, consistent with the above objectives; and


(e) To assist in ensuring all groups, especially the more vulnerable, are adequately represented. 
 
During 2021-22 the ISCCC commenced reviewing its objectives, mission and constitution, including to 
reflect amendments to the Associations Incorporation Act 1991. 


1.3 Relationship of ISCCC and local residents# groups


The governance arrangements of the Council recognise and respect the vital and enduring role 

played by existing residents associations in advancing the interests of the residents of their suburbs.

 These arrangements reflect the intention that the Council complement and assist rather than

 duplicate or supplant, the role of these associations. 

To this end, the Council focuses its energies on matters of common interest to Inner South Canberra

as a whole.
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2. Highlights of the year


Planning and development issues continued to occupy much time at ISCCC public meetings and in 
submissions and other activities during the year.


The table in Section 3 on Council meetings summarises the details of our Public Meetings, AGM and 
Committee meetings held in 2021-22. Meetings are open to the public and the forums with guest 
speakers are advertised broadly by broadcast emails, on Twitter, on Facebook, on radio, newspaper 
articles, on the ISCCC website and in ISCCC newsletters.


We held our public meetings and council meetings in 2021-22 as either physical meetings or via the 
online zoom platform, or as hybrid in-person/online meetings according to the prevailing health 
restrictions.  We will continue doing this as the need arises. 


Issues that our meetings focussed on in 2021-22 included:


• ISCCC Annual Planning meeting


• Communication Strategies including a focus on improving external communication


• Review of ISCCC Objectives, still in progress


• Updates from Resident Groups and Associations


• Updates from MLAs


• The ACT Government Planning System Review and Reform


• Development and release of ISCCC  Draft Inner South District Planning Strategy


• Canberra Brickworks Redevelopment


• Development of Kingston Arts Precinct


• Development of the Dairy Road Precinct


• Development of East Lake Precinct


• Proposed Urban Forest Strategy


• Transport including development of light rail


• Social and Community Housing


• Demonstration Projects, such as the Manor House


2.1 Budget


For financial year 2021-22, the ACT Government Grant was $12,821, and total ISCCC expenditure for 
the year was $12, 846.11. The 2021-22 ACT Government Grant was fully expended.


2.2 Other


ISCCC Committee members have participated in other recent initiatives and meetings, including 
meetings of the Combined Community Councils, the ACT Environment and Planning Forum, Brick-
works Community Panel and the Kingston Arts Precinct Community Panel.
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The ISCCC has made the following submissions during 2021-22:


• Canberra Brickworks Redevelopment Environmental Impact Statement (Jul 21)


• ACT Planning System Review and Reform Project (July 2021)


• Raising London Circuit (Dec 2021)


• Forestry Place Development (Aug 2021)


• Works Approval Application Blocks 1151 and 864 WestonCreek–Construction of Independent 
Living and Aged Care Facility (Sep 2021)


• Assembly’s Planning Standing Committee decision not to hold an lnquiry into Draft Variation 
369 to the Territory Plan (Dec 2021)


• Crematorium Symonston (May 2022)


• Planning Bill (June 2022)


• Urban Forest Bill (June 2022)


2.3 Communication and community outreach


The ISCCC has continued to build on our many communication channels complementing our public 
meetings, including an email list reaching nearly 700 residents, communication through eight inner 
south suburban residents groups and their networks, occasional City News supplements, our Twitter 
site with over 1200 followers and Facebook page with over 900 followers. We share posts with other 
Facebook pages such as the Kingston and Barton Residents Group Facebook site that has over 1600 
followers. We’ve been reaching out to other community organisations and groups, such as the ACT 
Council of Social Service, ACT Conservation Council, Greater Canberra (which conveys views of 
younger Canberrans), and the Canberra Multicultural Community Forum (which represents more 
than 100 ethnic and associated community organisations in Canberra).


2.4 Future Activities


As a result of the experience gained in organising online Zoom meetings during periods of COVID re-
strictions, the ISCCC will continue to hold more online and hybrid in-person/online meetings. 


Issues that are expected to attract attention and interest in 2022-23 include the ACT Planning Bill, 
Urban Forest Bill, new Territory Plan, the Inner South District Planning Strategy, Light Rail stage 2, 
Social housing, East Lake precinct, Canberra Brickworks, Kingston Arts Precinct and Dairy Road.


In particular, we anticipate a significant community engagement process as the ISCCC refines the 
Inner South Canberra District Planning Strategy that it released in late 2021, including in response to 
the ACT Government’s new District Strategies as part of its Planning Review and Reform.


3. ISCCC Meetings


The Council meetings have been open to the public and have been variously advertised by broadcast 
emails, on Twitter, on Facebook, on radio, newspaper articles, on the ISCCC website and in the ISCCC 
newsletter. The number listed below of guests attending our public forums is likely to understate ac-
tual numbers as many attendees chose not to sign the attendance registers.
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Date Time Location Number 
committee 
attending

Number 
guests 
attending

Key Agenda Item, guest speaker 
etc.

13 July 
2021

7.00pm Zoom online 14 27 Forum: Emma Davidson MLA 
Guest Speaker


Other items:


Inner South District Consolidated 
Plan


Light Rail


Red Hill Integrated Plan


Canberra Brickworks


Kingston Arts Precinct

10 Aug 
2021

7.00pm Eastlake Foot-
ball Club

9 1 Committee meeting


General Business


Territory Plan Review


Capitol Hotel Stage 2


Manor House

14 Sep 
2021

7.00pm Zoom online Included in 
total est-
mate 14

64 all 
online

Forum: Planning System Review 
and Reform


Draft Inner South Canberra Dis-
trict Strategy


Light Rail Stage 2B


Local MLAs and Resident Group 
Reports

12 Oct 
2021

7.00pm Zoom 15 All online Re-September ISCCC-Woden Val-
ley Community Council meeting: 
Light Rail


Resident Group Reports


Key Sub-Committee Reports-
Planning, Transport


General Business
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9 Nov 
2021

7.00pm Zoom online  39


All Online

Annual General Meeting


Resident Group Reports


Reports from MLAs

19 Feb 
2022

9.00am Eastlake Foot-
ball Club

17 Committee Meeting


Annual Planning 

8 March 
2022

7.00pm Zoom 64 All On-
line

Forum: Dairy Road-Next phase 
Estate Development


Kingston Arts Precinct


Fyshwick Business Association


East Lake Precinct


Light Rail


Group Reports


MLA Reports

15 
March 
2022

7.00pm Zoom 18 All online Special Committee Meeting


Election of Office Bearers for va-
cant positions

12 April 
2022

7.00pm Eastlake Foot-
ball Club

12 Committee Meeting


The Planning Bill


Social and Community Housing


Internal Governance


General Business

10 May 
2022

7.00pm Eastlake Foot-
ball Club and 
Zoom

Estimate 
18

87 includ-
ing 56 in 
person

31 online

Forum: New Planning Bill


Urban Forest Bill

Date Time Location Number 
committee 
attending

Number 
guests 
attending

Key Agenda Item, guest speaker 
etc.
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In addition, member Residents Groups have held suburban meetings as and when required. The 
ISCCC provides funding, sourced from its government grant, to assist them promote these meet-
ings.


14 June 
2022

7.00pm Eastlake Foot-
ball Club

13 Committee Meeting


The Planning Bill


Strategic Priorities review


Procedures/Code of Conduct


Group reports

Date Time Location Number 
committee 
attending

Number 
guests 
attending

Key Agenda Item, guest speaker 
etc.

56
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Other activities 

Our major activity for 2021-22 was holding the inaugural Molonglo Valley 
Multicultural Day at Stromlo Forest Park on 27 March from 2-5pm. The event was a 
celebration of cultures and communities providing multicultural food, entertainment, 
activities, and fun. 

Over 1000 people attended the event. The event was for all Molonglo Valley 
residents, communities and businesses from Coombs, Wright, Denman Prospect and 
Whitlam.

Hosted by the Molonglo Valley Community Forum (MVCF) in partnership with 
Woden Community Service. This event is supported by our sponsors Capital Estate 
Developments and the Suburban Land Agency. 

The event raised $957.40 through gold coin entry donations and the money was 
donated to Charles Weston School and Evelyn Scott School to buy books. 

There event included: 

Canberra Prosperous Mountain Dragon and Lion Dance 
Molonglo Valley Martial Arts – demonstration 
Canberra Highland Dancing Academy 
Quake Bellydance 
Mellabella Gelato
Short Eats – Sri lankan street food 
My Island Kitchen 
Free games and activities – Tug – of – War
Kids races – free entry and prizes 
Little Batty Coffee
Neat Street Coffee
Charles Weston School P&C – sausage sizzle
Evelyn Scott School stall 
Community stalls and more… 
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Future activities 
We are investigating holding another Molonglo Valley Multicultural Day though 
currently Stromlo Forest Park is changing the hiring and we are no longer allowed to 
use the same space as 2022. 

Appendices 
This section is optional. 
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PO Box 396 
Dickson ACT 2602 

info@northcanberra.org.au 
www.northcanberra.org.au 

Protecting, promoting and enhancing the economic, cultural, social and environmental wellbeing of the residents of 
North Canberra 

The North Canberra Community Council receives funding and support from the ACT Government  
 
 
To:  Community Council Liaison,  

Communications and Engagement Chief Minister,  
Treasury and Economic Development Directorate  
WholeofGovComms@act.gov.au 
GPO Box 158  
CANBERRA ACT 2601  

 
 
Community Council Liaison 
 
ACQUITTAL OF NORTH CANBERRA COMMUNITY COUNCIL 2020-21 
GRANT 
 
 
Please find attached the acquittal of the North Canberra Community Council Grant for 2020-21 
as required by the Deed of Grant.     
Please contact me if you have any queries or require any further information (ph.  
 
Yours sincerely 
 
 
 
 
Bruce Smith 
Treasurer, North Canberra Community Council 
 
30 September 2021 
 
 
Attachments 

A Statement of Acquittal of Grant 
B Financial Report 
C Audited Financial Statements 
D End of Year Report 
E Evidence of acknowledgement of Territory. 
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Items of expenditure of $1,000 or more (Schedule 3 – Special Conditions) 

There were 3 items of expenditure of $1,000 or more: 

1. Annual insurance with AoN insurance ($ 1,670.63) - paid 3 November 2020. 

• The purpose of this payment was to meet the requirements of the Deed of Grant 
(documentation at Attachment B.1) 

2. Wings over Dickson celebration ($1,811.44) – paid 7 April 2020.  Documentation at 
Attachment B.2 Further information in End of Year report. 

3. Light up Lyneham celebration and photo competition ($1,300) – paid 5 May 2021. 

• Documentation at Attachment B.3.  Further information in End of Year report. 
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ATTACHMENT B.1 

 
  

Tax Invoice
Invoice No. I10673336

Date of issue 13 October 2020
Client ID PRM 1JP2X

Bruce Smith
North Canberra Community Council 
Inc
PO Box 396
DICKSON ACT 2602

Contact
Telephone 1800 123 266
Email

Invoice details
Class Community Organisations
Period 22/11/2020 to 22/11/2021
Insurer Refer to Policy Schedule
Policy No. Refer to Policy Schedule

Payment Summary
Premium $ 1,318.75
GST
Broker Service Charge
Fee GST

$
$
$

131.88
200.00

20.00

Total Payment Due  (AUD) $ 1,670.63
Payment Due Date 05 December 2020 

Transaction Description
** Renewal **

Refer to coverage summary/policy schedule for details

This invoice relates to an Aon Product where the insurer has given us its authority to offer or issue this product to you on its behalf. Please refer overleaf.

Pay by the month
Apply for Premium Funding
Visit  https://hpf.online/1e176f5m2k
Reference Code  21003460
Fees and Charges apply

10 monthly Instalments  $180.43
Initial Application Fee  $40.00
Total Amount Payable  $1,844.28

Aon Reference: PRM 1JP2X B206624/003
* Fees apply

 Aon Risk Services Australia Limited ABN 17 000 434 720 AFSL 241141 
PO Box 1331  Parramatta NSW 2124
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ATTACHMENT B.2 
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ATTACHMENT B.3 

 

From: LCA con ac @lyneham org au
Subject: Receip  for NCCC funding (2)

Date: 22 June 2021 a  9 45 pm
To: Bruce Smi h

To	the	Treasurer,	NCCC
	
I	acknowledge	receipt	from	the	NCCC	of	$1300	received	in	our	bank	account	on	5	May	2021
for

Light	Up	Lyneham	2021	–	expenses	$1000
Eye	Spy	My	Lyneham	Photo	compeKKon	–	prizes	$300

	
The	$300	has	been	spent.	AOached	are	receipts	for	giP	vouchers	worth	$100	and	$200	cash
that	was	distributed	to	various	prize	winners.	
The	Light	Up	Lyneham	funding	is	sKll	being	expended.
	
Thank	you	for	the	funding.
	
Gordon	McAllister
Treasurer
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I would be pleased to do the NCCC audit or review for 2021/22 if invited. 
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Attached Statements 
 
A  Statement of Income and Expenditure for the year ending 30th June 2021 
 
B  Statement of Financial Position as at year ended 30th June 2021 
 
 
 
 
 
A  
Statement of Income and Expenditure for NCCC 
(For the Year Ending 30th June 2021) 
 
2020                    2021 
   $              $  
_____________________________________________________________________________
_____________ 
  INCOME            
   
        10.70      Interest Income                                2.19 
12,821.00     ACT Government Grant / Other revenue            12,871.0 0          
_____________________________________________________________________________
______________ 
12,831.70 Total Income               12,873.19 
_____________________________________________________________________________

______________ 
 
 

EXPENSES 
 
Consulting and Accounting System                                               270.00 
General Expenses      11,317.41 
Insurance         1,670.63 
Telephone and internet                       218.50    

_____________________________________________________________________________
_______________ 

   12,618          Total Expenses                        13,476.54 
_____________________________________________________________________________

______________ 
 
        210.00 Net Surplus/Deficit                 (603.35) 
 
 
Note: The NCCC has changed its categories for reporting expenses to better reflect the activities 

of the Council 
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B 
Statement of Financial Position for the NCCC 
(as at 30 June 2021) 
 
Current Assets 
 
Cash at Bank     $4,409.71 
Non Current Assets              $.00 
 
Total Assets     $4,409.71 
 
 Liabilities 
 
Total Liabilities      $.00 
 
 
Net Assets     $4409.71 
 

Members Equity  
 
Balance at 30/06/20    $5,013.06 
Net Surplus/ (Deficit) 2021    ($603.35) 
 
Balance at 30/06/2021   $4,409.71     
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ATTACHMENT D 

END OF YEAR REPORT 
 
Community Council Name: North Canberra Community Council Incorporated 
 
Council Objectives/Mission Statement 

The aim of the Council is to protect, promote and enhance the economic, cultural, social and 
environmental well-being of the North Canberra resident community by pursuing the following 
objectives:  

• Fostering a community identity and providing a local forum for voicing issues of concern 
to the community,  

• Promoting the interests of the North Canberra resident community,  
• Ensuring that legislators and officials are fully informed of resident community needs 

and expectations,  
• Ensuring that party politics do not impede, or override community wishes,  
• Identifying, fostering and assisting residents’ community groups and establishing and 

maintaining a close liaison amongst them,  
• Identifying other community groups and establishing liaisons with them in mutual 

interests and the interests of the resident community,  
• Contributing to the physical and social planning of North Canberra and Canberra as a 

whole,  
• Valuing and fostering the diversity of the North Canberra community  
• Ensuring that the interests of all residents’ groups in North Canberra are properly 

represented; and  
• Informing the community about issues concerning North Canberra.  

Highlights and key developments 
 
The NCCC is now effectively a federated body, with its Committee consisting of representatives 
of 12 active suburb residents associations (two representatives from each association).  The 
NCCC therefore operates at both the “core” level, which is primarily concerned with issues 
related to development, and through the residents’ associations, which, in addition to specific 
development issues in their suburbs, also focus on community engagement and identity.   
 
Operationally, the Council operated effectively.  Monthly meetings alternate between general 
meetings, with presentations, and Committee meetings.  While attendance from non-Committee 
members at General Meetings has been reduced from the face-to-face meetings of previous 
years, attendance by the relatively large Committee has been strong and consistent.  Meetings 
have been advertised on social media and the Committee has recently commissioned the 
development of a social media strategy with the aim of raising the public profile of the NCCC 
which will also hopefully increase attendance at meetings.   
 
Regarding development issues, 2020-21 has been a difficult year.  The inner north of Canberra is 
increasingly subject to pressures for increased densification and redevelopment which is placing 
considerable strain on the original character and amenity of many of the suburbs.  The NCCC is 
not opposed to densification as such, but is keen to ensure that it is well done and informed by 
effective consultation.  The redevelopment of the War Memorial was approved by the 
Commonwealth Government against the clear opposition of almost all submissions to the 
consultation.  Within the ACT jurisdiction the “consultation” on the development of district 
planning has been manifestly inadequate and has contributed to increasing cynicism about 
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planning consultation generally.  In addition, there has been a continuing erosion of community 
facilities where the owners of these facilities, originally leased for community purposes, are now 
in the process of monetizing them to support declining enterprises (eg. the redevelopment of 
Thoroughbred Park), plans for expansion (eg. Ainslie Football Club) or to support social 
objectives (also supported by the NCCC) which are poorly integrated with the local community 
and locations (eg. YWCA proposal for Bill Pye Park.  There is also an emerging shortage of 
facilities for community organisations in the inner north, making it difficult for these 
organisations to remain viable (eg. proposals for former Hackett Primary School).  The NCCC 
has participated, and will continue to participate, in the various consultation processes and 
through raising issues and making appeals. 
 
On 16 September 2020 NCCC conducted an election forum on zoom that was mediated by 
Genevieve Jacobs (RiotACT) with representatives of Labor, The Greens, Canberra Liberals, 
Canberra Progressives and the Independent Bruce Paine attending.  The speakers were: 

•      ACT Labor (Stephen-Smith); 
•      The Canberra Liberals (Lee);  
•      The ACT Greens (Rattenbury and Vassarotti); 
•      The Canberra Progressives (Tim Bohm and others); and 
•      Bruce Paine (Independent) 

 
Community activity through the residents’ associations has been more positive.  During the year 
the Dickson Residents Group was formally incorporated, the O’Connor Community Inc has been 
rejuvenated (after a few years of dormancy) and two new suburb associations have been formed 
and have joined the NCCC: the Ainslie Residents Association and the Braddon Collective.  This 
means that there are now 10 active residents associations in the inner north, most of whom are 
producing newsletters and maintaining at least basic social media presences (eg. websites).  
Where the suburbs are the focus of redevelopment (eg. Dickson, Watson, Downer) the 
associations have a strong focus on those issues, but all associations also engage in grassroots 
community building.  The aim is to bring people together, build a stronger sense of community 
identity and provide lines of communication about issues affecting people in each suburb.  Most 
of this activity is funded out of the NCCC grant and covered by NCCC insurance. 
 
A highlight of the year was the “Wings of Dickson – Pioneers, Pilots and the Ploughman!” event 
held on Saturday 10 April 2021.  The exhibition, organized and created by the Dickson 
Residents Group, hosted 400 visitors, and took place as part of the Canberra and Region 
Heritage Festival. It was funded entirely by North Canberra Community Council and Dickson 
Residents Group. Some sixty people gathered on the historic aerodrome for the ceremonial 
unveiling of Dickson’s very first pair of Canberra Tracks heritage signs. Among the audience 
gathered were former Chief of Air Force, Air Marshal Geoff Brown, Group Captain David 
Fredericks representing the Air Force, Members for Kurrajong Rachel Stephen-Smith and Shane 
Rattenbury, President of the National Trust Gary Kent, President of the Canberra and District 
Historical Society Allen Mawer, Chair of the Heritage Council Dr Ken Heffernan, Mr James 
Oglethorpe representing 3 Squadron RAAF Association, and senior staff of the ANU Centre for 
Heritage and Museum Studies Dr Mary Hutchison. Inside the Hall, visitors were greeted by over 
70 historical items and rare objects. 
 
A further highlight was Light Up Lyneham, organised by the Lyneham Community Association, 
which was held on 24 July 2021. The weather was very cold and windy, but the rain held off 
until the event was closing.  About 850 people braved the conditions, taking advantage of a 
range of community stalls at the Lyneham shops, and enjoying the illuminated displays around 
the Lyneham wetlands as part of the Lantern Walk from the shops to the wetlands and back. 
Attendance was understandably lower this year due to Covid, though those who came were well-
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rewarded for their perseverance.  A feature of this year’s Light Up Lyneham was the addition of 
a stage and sound for the talented local performers. 
 
Council Meetings 

All NCCC general and committee meetings in 2020-21 were held by Zoom.  The meetings 
commenced at 7.00pm. 
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DATE ATTENDANCE KEY ITEMS/SPEAKERS 
15 July 2020 
General Meeting 

15 (11 Committee members, 
1 member, 4 guests) 

Presentations from Transport Canberra on revisions 
to the bus timetable; Canberra Health Services on 
the new Dickson Walk-in Medical Centre; and by the 
Dickson Residents Group on the Dickson 
Aerodrome. 

Discussion of proposed extension of o Morisset 
Road to the Federal Highway intersection at the 
Antill Street roundabout; reply from the Minister for 
Planning Mick Gentleman MLA to an NCCC letter 
outlining a range of concerns around knock-down 
rebuilds or major extensions in residential zones; 
ACT Government response to the NCCC’s letter 
seeking an opportunity to discuss the upcoming ACT 
Planning Review; developments planned for Ainslie, 
Dickson, and Campbell. 

19 August 2020 
Committee meeting 

12 Committee members Discussion of planned Candidates Forum; 
development of a website discussion board; 
Morisset Road Extension; Soho development in 
Dickson; Dickson Section 72 call in; revised West-
Basin plans; Braddon bus layover; development in 
Downer. 

 
16 September 2020 
Election forum 

No minutes – about 50 
attendees - video version 
online 

See under “Highlights” above. 

21 October 2020 
Committee meeting 

11 Committee members Discussion	about	implications	of	ACT	Election	
outcome;	Inner	North	City	Farm	proposal;	Section	
72	development;	Coles	development	in	Dickson;	
compliance	with	heritage	listings	in	Reid;	
Lyneham	to	O’Connor	heritage	trail;	ACAT	
proceedings	on	dispute	with	Ainslie	Football	Club;	
Issues	related	to	Bill	Pye	Park	in	Ainslie;	
development	applications	in	Braddon;		

18 November 2020 
General meeting 
 

17 (13 Committee, 4 
members)  

Former MLA Caroline le Couteur provided a 
presentation on how to improve planning and 
consultation. 

Discussion of the Garden City Cycle route; Section 72 
development in Dickson; DA for Dickson McDonalds; 
development applications in Campbell and Ainslie 

 
17 February 2021  
General meeting 

19, 6 guests Presentations by ACT Health on Canberra Hospital 
Master Plan & by Canberra Racing Club and 
Planitstrategic on rezoning parts of Thoroughbred 
Park for residential development.  

Discussion on Territory Plan Review, EPBCA, North 
Watson developments, AIE master plan on old 
Watson high school site; UNSW campus master plan 
in Reid; Heritage Day in Dickson; Coles 
development in Dickson; incorporation of Dickson 
and Ainslie resident associations; development 
induced traffic in Campbell.  
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17 March 2021 
Committee meeting 

9 Committee members Discussion of development along Northbourne 
corridor, with particular focus on traffic flows; Dame 
Pattie Menzies building; the Australian Heritage 
Strategy; Bill Pye Park decision; redevelopment of 
the new Technology Park on the old Watson school 
site; tour of Canberra’s original 1920s aerodrome in 
Dickson 

 
21 April 2021 
General meeting 

17 (14 Committee; 3 
members) 

Presentations from ACT Health on the latest round 
of consultation on the Canberra Hospital Master 
Plan; and JW Land delivered a briefing on their 
upcoming Braddon Place development.  

Discussion about Dickson Coles project; Dame Pattie 
Menzies project in Dickson; Lonsdale St upgrade in 
Braddon; Block 76 in Watson; mural in Hackett; 
traffic and parking in Reid; incorporation of Dickson 
Residents Group; Yowani golf club development; 
redevelopment of the Campbell shops; Bill Pye Park 
in Ainslie. 

	
19 May 2021 
Committee meeting 

14 (10 Committee, 4 guests) Presentation from Canberra Racing Club on 
redevelopment of Thoroughbred Park. 

Discussion of redevelopment of community land; 
ACT Planning Review; proposal for new 
development at the Holiday Inn next to Glebe Park; 
Bill Pye Park in Ainslie; Lyneham photo competition; 
War Memorial redevelopment;  

16 June 2021 
General meeting 

15 (13 Committee; 2 
observers) 

Presentations by Lea Durie of the Demonstration 
Housing Project (EPDSD) team in the ACT 
Government, followed by a presentation by Tony 
Trobe and a builder of one of the Demonstration 
Housing projects (In Loco) on their O’Connor-based 
project.  

Discussion of NCA approval of development of the 
War Memorial; proposed redevelopment of 
Thoroughbred Park and Yowani Golf Club; upcoming 
consultations on District Planning; FOI request on 
Draft Variation 369; ACAT hearing on Braddon 
development; planning for Light up Lyneham; 
heritage issues in Reid; community event in 
O’Connor; bike paths and connectivity in Braddon; 
Ainslie Football Club and Bill Pye Park. 

 
 
Other activities 
 
• The Campbell Community Association 

o Held two Campbell photo competitions.  The prizes ($850) were in the form of vouchers 
to be spent at local Campbell businesses nominated by the prize winners which had the 
added benefit of providing support to Campbell businesses under increased pressure from 
Covid lockdowns. Competition photos have been published on the CCA Facebook page. 
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o Continued the pilot program of the Campbell Coffee Club which aims to bring members 
of the Campbell Community together to forge new friendships and to provide an 
opportunity to discuss issues of mutual interest. The coffee club has proven to be very 
popular with men and women of all ages and from different backgrounds and provides a 
forum to gauge community reactions to local issues and helps to broaden and share 
knowledge on development, parking and other ongoing challenges in the area. A further 
payment of $500.00 was made in March 2021 which will allow the coffee club to 
continue (due to covid restrictions on gatherings) to at least the end of 2021. 

• The Hackett Community Association  

o Provided auspicing for several community projects, including three Adopt-a-Park 
projects, as well as a mural at the shops 

o Printed and distributed an annual report to residents of the suburb summarising activities 
for the year 

o Has developed a Welcome leaflet for distribution to new residents in the suburb 

• The Reid Residents Association 

o Printed and distributed newsletters for residents during the year 

o Provided information sheets for participants in the Reid Heritage Walk. 
Future activities 
 
In addition to building on the work of previous years, in 2021-22 the NCCC will prioritise: 
 

• Planning & Consultation: The NCCC will advocate for parties to reconsider current 
planning and consultation processes, with emphasis on design competitions, updated 
strategic precinct plans, community facilities and contributions to the common goods and 
service and infrastructure responses in the spirit of the Neighborhood Planning process 
that was conducted in 2003/2004. 

• Compliance Management: The NCCC will request that development of compliance 
management strategies be embedded as a priority of the new Government, including 
ways of improving the compliance standards of development applications and robust 
laws and procedures for enforcing design and building quality standards. 

• Environment & Biodiversity: We will highlight the urgent need for integrated 
biodiversity management of nature reserves and urban parks, including a robust, 
coordinated, and sustained weed and revegetation management strategy. 

• Social & Supportive Housing: NCCC is fully supportive of social and supportive housing 
projects in the ACT.  We will argue for better integration of social and supportive 
housing with comprehensive service centres (including health, childcare and community 
facilities) and the public transport/active travel network. 
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ATTACHMENT E 

 
Evidence of acknowledgement of Territory. 
 
Segment of Home Page of NCCC website. 
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PO Box 396 
Dickson ACT 2602 

info@northcanberra.org.au 
www.northcanberra.org.au 

Protecting, promoting and enhancing the economic, cultural, social and environmental wellbeing of the residents of 
North Canberra 

The North Canberra Community Council receives funding and support from the ACT Government  
 
 
To:  Community Council Liaison,  

Communications and Engagement Chief Minister,  
Treasury and Economic Development Directorate  
askus@yoursay.act.gov.au 
GPO Box 158  
CANBERRA ACT 2601  

 
 
Community Council Liaison 
 
ACQUITTAL OF NORTH CANBERRA COMMUNITY COUNCIL 2021-22 
GRANT 
 
 
Please find attached the acquittal of the North Canberra Community Council Grant for 2021-22 
as required by the Deed of Grant.    I apologise for the delaying in providing this acquittal. 
 
Please contact me if you have any queries or require any further information (ph.  
 
Yours sincerely 
 
 
 
 
Bruce Smith 
Treasurer, North Canberra Community Council 
 
21 November 2022 
 
Attachments 

A Statement of Acquittal of Grant 
B Financial Report 
C Audited Financial Statements 
D End of Year Report 
E Evidence of acknowledgement of Territory. 
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ATTACHMENT B 
FINANCIAL REPORT 

The Council began the financial year with a balance of $ 4,289.71.  It received a grant of 
$12,821 on 23 November 2021.   

Total expenditure was $12,159.61 for 2021-22.  The main forms of expenditure were: 

• IT and social media project ($3,402) – NCCC and resident associations websites, and 
social media project 

• Insurance ($2,162) – as required by the Deed of Grant.  This insurance also covers the 
member Residents Associations (except Downer, which has its own insurance 
arrangements); 

• Administration ($336) – administrative fees, post office box rental, etc; 

• Campaigns to Government ($2,184) – mainly ACAT fees; 

• Community communication/Identity ($4,190) – residents group activities to enable grass 
roots community communication and building a sense of suburb identity (more detail in 
End of Year Report). 
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Items of expenditure of $1,000 or more (Schedule 3 – Special Conditions) 

There were 2 items of expenditure of $1,000 or more: 

1. Annual insurance with AoN insurance ($2,162) - paid 16 December 2021. 

• The purpose of this payment was to meet the requirements of the Deed of Grant 
(documentation at Attachment B.1) 

2. NCCC Social media strategy ($1,496) – paid 13 September 2021.  Documentation at 
Attachment B.2 Further information in End of Year report. 
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ATTACHMENT B.1 

 
  

Tax Invoice
Invoice No. I11053316

Date of issue 13 October 2021
Client ID PRM 1JP2X

Bruce Smith
North Canberra Community Council 
Inc
PO Box 396
DICKSON ACT 2602

Contact
Telephone 1800 123 266
Email

Invoice details
Class Community Organisations
Period 22/11/2021 to 22/11/2022
Insurer Refer to Policy Schedule
Policy No. Refer to Policy Schedule

Payment Summary
Premium $ 1,765.50
GST
Broker Service Charge
Fee GST

$
$
$

176.56
200.00

20.00

Total Payment Due  (AUD) $ 2,162.06
Payment Due Date 05 December 2021 

Transaction Description
** Renewal **

Refer to coverage summary/policy schedule for details

This invoice relates to an Aon Product where the insurer has given us its authority to offer or issue this product to you on its behalf. Please refer overleaf.

Pay by the month
Apply for Premium Funding
Visit  https://hpf online/304025664u
Reference Code  70240157
Fees and Charges apply

12 monthly Instalments  $197 29
Initial Application Fee  $40.00
Total Amount Payable  $2,407.46

Aon Reference: PRM 1JP2X B206624/005
* Fees apply

 Aon Risk Services Australia Limited ABN 17 000 434 720 AFSL 241141 
PO Box 1331  Parramatta NSW 2124
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ATTACHMENT B.2 

 
 

 
 
  

PAYMENT ADVICE

To: SEE-Change
PO Box 7025
WATSON ACT 2602
AUSTRALIA

Customer North Canberra Community
Council

Invoice Number INV-0068

Amount Due 1,496.00
Due Date 14 Sep 2021

Amount Enclosed  

Enter the amount you are paying above

TAX INVOICE
North Canberra Community Council
Attn: Bruce Smith, NCCC Treasurer
DICKSON ACT 2602
AUSTRALIA

Invoice Date
31 Aug 2021

Invoice Number
INV-0068

Reference
Social media intern

ABN
48 762 553 940

SEE-Change
PO Box 7025
WATSON ACT 2602
AUSTRALIA

Delivery Address
PO Box 396
DICKSON ACT 2602
AUSTRALIA

Description Quantity Unit Price GST Amount AUD

Preparation of a communication strategy doc by a social
media intern involving consultation with NCCC executive
and board and residents groups representatives

1.00 1,360.00 10% 1,360.00

Subtotal 1,360.00

TOTAL GST 10% 136.00

TOTAL AUD 1,496.00

Due Date: 14 Sep 2021
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ATTACHMENT C 

North Canberra Community Council 
Independent Reviewers Report.  

 
For the financial year 2021/2022 
 
General 
 
This review has been conducted in accordance with the ACT Associations Incorporation Act 
1991,Part 5 Sections 70 through to 80: specifically sections 74 and 75. 
 
Under the Act the NCCC is a small association and must report annually a statement of accounts 
which is not misleading and is a true and fair account of: 
 

a) the income and expenditure of the association during the most recently ended financial 
year; and 
 

b)  the assets and liabilities of the association at the end of the financial year; and 
 

c) any mortgages, charges or other securities of any description affecting any property of 
the association. 
 

Under the Act a small association has the choice of reviewer or auditor to conduct the Audit. 
This is a Reviewers Audit. 
 
Opinion 
 
I have reviewed the attached NCCC Accounts for 2021/22 and believe them to be a true and fair 
account of the Councils Financial position. 
 
This reviewer had unfettered access to the NCCC bank statements and the software and 
examined sufficient entries to verify that the system is transparent and true.  Appropriate 
documentation in the way of receipts, invoices , letters of request and the like are attached to 
each transaction. 
 
As far as I can determine the rules relating to the administration of the funds of the NCCC have 
been observed. The attached statements (Income and Expenditure, Statement of Financial 
Position,) are true and correct 
 
Signed             

 
 
18/08/2022 
 
Kelly Kavanagh FCPA (Independent Reviewer) 
Contact  
 
I would be pleased to do the NCCC audit or review for 2022/23 if invited. 
 

102102

Sch 2.2(a)(ii)

Sch 2.2(a)(ii)



 Page 7 of 13 

Attached Statements 
 
A  Statement of Income and Expenditure for the year ending 30th June 2022 
 
B  Statement of Financial Position as at year ended 30th June 2022 
 
 
 
 
 
A  
Statement of Income and Expenditure for NCCC 
(For the Year Ending 30th June 2022) 
 
2021                    2022 
   $              $  
_____________________________________________________________________________
_____________ 
  INCOME            
   
           2.19 Interest Income                                0.00 
12,871.00     ACT Government Grant / Other revenue            12,821.0 0          
_____________________________________________________________________________
______________ 
12,873.19 Total Income               12,821.00 
_____________________________________________________________________________

______________ 
 
 

EXPENSES 
 
ACAT Appeals       2,184.00 
Community Associations leaflets, flyers, noticeboards       3,158.89                                    
Computer consumables          275.00 
Insurance        2,162.00 
Lyneham Heritage Trail          760.00 
PO Box            216.00 
Sea Change Community Access     1,496.00 
Web design, hosting & websites     1,669.90   
Zoom subscription          237.82 

_____________________________________________________________________________
_______________ 

13476.54          Total Expenses                       12,159.61 
_____________________________________________________________________________

______________ 
 
       (603.35) Net Surplus/Deficit                    661.39 
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B 
Statement of Financial Position for the NCCC 
(as at 30 June 2022) 
 
Current Assets 
 
Cash at Bank        $4,951.10 
Non Current Assets              $0.00 
   
Total Assets       $4,951.10 
 
 Liabilities 
 
Total Liabilities               $0.00 
 
 
Net Assets             $4,951.10 
 

Members Equity  
 
Balance at 30/06/21        $4,289.71 
Net Surplus/ (Deficit) 2022          $661.39 
 
Balance at  30/06/2022   $4,951.10      
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ATTACHMENT D 

END OF YEAR REPORT 
 
Community Council Name: North Canberra Community Council Incorporated 
 
Council Objectives/Mission Statement 

The aim of the Council is to protect, promote and enhance the economic, cultural, social and 
environmental well-being of the North Canberra resident community by pursuing the following 
objectives:  

• Fostering a community identity and providing a local forum for voicing issues of concern 
to the community,  

• Promoting the interests of the North Canberra resident community,  
• Ensuring that legislators and officials are fully informed of resident community needs 

and expectations,  
• Ensuring that party politics do not impede, or override community wishes,  
• Identifying, fostering and assisting residents’ community groups and establishing and 

maintaining a close liaison amongst them,  
• Identifying other community groups and establishing liaisons with them in mutual 

interests and the interests of the resident community,  
• Contributing to the physical and social planning of North Canberra and Canberra as a 

whole,  
• Valuing and fostering the diversity of the North Canberra community  
• Ensuring that the interests of all residents’ groups in North Canberra are properly 

represented; and  
• Informing the community about issues concerning North Canberra.  

Highlights and key developments 
 
The NCCC is a federated body, with its Committee consisting of representatives of 10 active 
suburb residents associations (two representatives from each association).  The NCCC therefore 
operates at both the “core” level, which is primarily concerned with issues related to 
development, and also through the residents’ associations, which, in addition to specific 
development issues in their suburbs, also focus on community engagement and identity.   
 
Monthly meetings alternate between general meetings, with presentations, and Committee 
meetings.  While attendance from non-Committee members at General Meetings has been 
reduced from the face-to-face meetings of previous years, attendance by the relatively large 
Committee has been strong and consistent.  Meetings have been advertised on social media. 
 
NCCC was primarily focused on development issues in 2021-22.  This took different forms: 

• a number of sporting and service organisations with land holdings in the inner north are 
attempting to develop housing on their land in order to provide additional income 
streams.  The NCCC is not opposed to the development of additional housing in the inner 
north per se but is concerned that the privatization of community resources is being done 
in an ad hoc manner focused on the specific interests of each organisation.  There should 
be an overall planning approach which links all these developments to a coherent 
strategy and which balances the desirability of additional housing with the need to 
maintain the amenity of existing residents and the need for community spaces. 

• The NCCC participated in the consultation sessions leading to the development of the 
ACT Planning Bill.  Our view is that these consultations were manifestly inadequate and 
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that the reports on the sessions did not reflect the views put forward in the sessions 
themselves. 

• The NCCC was also involved in discussions with the Government about specific 
planning issues, particularly in relation to DV369 and development approvals for major 
projects on Northbourne Avenue. 

 
The NCCC has been conscious for some time about the need to expand its social media 
presence.  This is partly been about moving towards a greater focus on online interaction post-
Covid, but also more generally about involving a wider demographic.  We commissioned the 
development of a Social Media Strategy, which was agreed to by the Committee, and has led to 
a more proactive approach on Twitter, Facebook etc.  The main obstacle is the lack of time and 
resources to put into this work. 
 
The affiliated NCCC residents’ associations have been active at a grass-roots community level 
with a wide range of activities: 

• A number participated in the ACT Heritage Festival, including: 
o The Reid Residents Association organised the Reid Roaring 20s event on 10 

April. Residents & friends joined together for a picnic event on the grounds of the 
Reid Tennis Club.   It also featured the conservation work completed on the 
‘Rockite’ pebble street signposts with the restoration of six posts in Reid and one 
in Braddon.  

o The Hackett Community Association organised a series of walks highlighting 
heritage site in Hackett 

o The Braddon Collective organised the Braddon Modern History Tour. 
• The Lyneham Community Association completed a major project to develop the 

Lyneham and North O’Connor Heritage Trail.  The Trail is approximately 9km long, 
following footpaths, bike paths and bush tracks around Lyneham and north 
O’Connor. The Trail was launched by the Minister for Environment and Heritage 
Rebecca Vassarotti MLA, whol unveiled the wayfinding map at Lyneham shops and then 
the first heritage walk was held around the southern side of Lyneham and in North 
O’Connor.  

• The Hackett Association auspiced a number of projects regenerating parks in the suburb, 
including the Bragg St and Gilruth St parks 

• The Dickson Residents Group has continued its work on Wings of Dickson, and has also 
been active in addressing the major development of the Dickson Shops and the Woolley 
Street upgrade. 

• The Campbell Community Association has continued to work on the park behind the 
shops, has organised working bees for other parks, and is continuing its Coffee Club and 
Tai Chi classes.   

• The Downer Association put up new noticeboards at the Downer Shops and has auspiced 
a grant for a bicycle “pump” track. 

• The Braddon Collective has initiated a petition to upgrade Braddon Park and is also 
working with the City Renewal Authority on a range of issues relating to Braddon. 

 
Council Meetings 

All NCCC general and committee meetings in 2021-22 were held by Zoom.  The meetings 
commenced at 7.00pm. 
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DATE ATTENDANCE KEY ITEMS/SPEAKERS 
21 July 2021 
Committee meeting 

10 and 1 observer  Discussion of ACT Planning Review; Yowani and 
Thoroughbred Park; Dickson shops construction; 
Braddon Place development; suburb updates. 

18 August  2021  
General meeting 

18 and 2 observers Presentations by Shadow Minister for Planning and 
Land Management Peter Cain MLA discussed his 
views on local planning issues and took questions 
from NCCC members.  

Discussion on Territory Planning Review, Original 
Canberra Aerodrome Heritage nomination; 
redevelopments at Yowani golf course and 
Thoroughbred Park; addition to NCCC of Ainslie 
and Braddon residents’ associations; suburb updates. 

15 September 2021 
Committee meeting 

13 Discussion on Bill Pye Park proposal in Ainslie; 
proposed reform on DV369 (plot ratios); ACT 
Planning Review; reduction of community sites in 
the inner north; Summernats. 

20 October 2021 
General Meeting 

24 and 7 
observers/presenters 

Elizabeth Lee, MLA and Tim Hollo gave 
presentations on key issues in the inner north.  There 
was then discussion and questions and answers. 

Discussion about an indicative land release on 
Northbourne Ave and reports from residents groups. 

17 November 2021 
Annual General 
Meeting 

18 and 6 observers There was a general discussion about strengths and 
weaknesses of the NCCC and how to position 
ourselves for the future.  There was also an extended 
discussion about the development proposals from the 
Ainslie Football Club.  This was followed by the 
election of office bearers and Committee members. 

16 February 2022 
Committee meeting 

10 and 1 observer Kim Rubenstein gave a presentation about her 
approach to key issues in the inner north and 
answered questions. 

Discussion about planning and climate change; social 
housing; NCCC Communications Strategy paper 

16 March 2022 
General Meeting 

15 and 1 observer Ms Rebecca Vassaroti, MLA, Minister for Minister 
for the Environment; Heritage, Homelessness and 
Housing Services; and Sustainable Building and 
Construction,spoke about public housing reforms in 
the inner north, including notices on public housing 
evictions. 

Discussion on the proposed redevelopments by the 
Ainslie Football Club; Reid Heritage Festival; speed 
limits near childcare centres and NCCC social media. 

20 April 2022 
Committee meeting 
 

11 and 7 observers and 
presenters 

Guest presentation by the Suburban Land Agency on 
Turner Block 2 Section 57 (on Northbourne Avenue)  

Guest presentation by residents of Forum apartments 
regarding Geocon’s proposed development at 70 
Allara St  

Discussion on ACT Planning Review; War Memorial 
redevelopment; NCCC social media strategy 
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18 May 2022 
General meeting 

17 and 7 observers  Presentation by NCCC Deputy Chair Jane Goffman 
on Variation 369 (Living Infrastructure in 
Residential Zones), outlining the context around the 
need for Variation 369 (i.e. to address urban heat 
islands and biodiversity loss associated with new 
developments).  Rebecca Vassarotti MLA responded 
to a number of the points.  Meeting passed a motion 
regarding the Variation. 

15 June 2022 
Committee meeting 

10 and 1 observer Discussion on ACT Planning Bill; Monash Drive 
removal; barking dogs; Community Council funding; 
Ainslie Football Club redevelopment; relocation of 
housing tenants in Ainslie; break-ins in Reid; Garden 
City cycle route. 

 
Future activities 
 
In addition to building on the work of previous years, in 2022-23 the NCCC will prioritise: 
 

• Planning & Consultation: The NCCC will advocate for parties to reconsider current 
planning and consultation processes, with emphasis on design competitions, updated 
strategic precinct plans, community facilities and contributions to the common goods and 
service and infrastructure responses in the spirit of the Neighborhood Planning process 
that was conducted in 2003/2004. 

• Compliance Management: The NCCC will request that development of compliance 
management strategies be embedded as a priority of the new Government, including 
ways of improving the compliance standards of development applications and robust 
laws and procedures for enforcing design and building quality standards. 

• Environment & Biodiversity: We will highlight the urgent need for integrated 
biodiversity management of nature reserves and urban parks, including a robust, 
coordinated, and sustained weed and revegetation management strategy. 

• Social & Supportive Housing: NCCC is fully supportive of social and supportive housing 
projects in the ACT.  We will argue for better integration of social and supportive 
housing with comprehensive service centres (including health, childcare and community 
facilities) and the public transport/active travel network. 
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ATTACHMENT E 

 
Evidence of acknowledgement of Territory. 
 
Segment of Home Page of NCCC website. 
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ANNEXURE A 
 

TUGGERANONG COMMUNITY COUNCIL END OF YEAR REPORT 
FOR 2020-2021 

 
 

Community Council Name: Tuggeranong Community Council Incorporated 
 
 
Council Objectives/ Mission Statement 

Objects and Purposes of the Association are: 

(a) To promote the interests of the Tuggeranong Valley community;  

(b) To enhance and improve the economic, cultural, social and environmental 

well-being of Tuggeranong residents, and community groups;  

(c) To identify community groups, and establish and maintain a close liaison 

amongst them;  

(d) To contribute to the physical and social planning of and the development of 

the Tuggeranong Valley;  

(e) To ensure that the interests of youth, the aged and other groups in the district 

are properly represented; and  

(f) To inform the community about matters affecting the Tuggeranong Valley.  

 

Highlights  
The Tuggeranong Community Council has continued to provide relevant and regular 
public meetings through the challenges of the COVID pandemic. Meetings have moved 
on-line using the Zoom video conferencing application and from the start of 2021 a 
hybrid format was adopted with in-person meetings combined with Zoom. Community 
members and speakers have adapted to the on-line and hybrid formats. 
 
The TCC hosted a Candidates’ Forum for the 2020 Legislative Assembly Election. The 
challenge of conducting the forum whilst observing social distancing was significant. 
The forum was our first attempt at a hybrid meeting. The forum was facilitated by 
Genevieve Jacobs and attended by ten candidates. The event provided an excellent 
opportunity for the electors of Brindabella to get to know the candidates in what was a 
very different election campaign.  
 
We have been successful in reinvigorating the Sub Committees with increased 
participation by members.  The Planning, Transport and Communications Sub 
Committee is now a strong and active group under the leadership of Harvey Bell. 
Community, Health and Wellbeing, Environment and Sustainability and Youth Sub 
Committees have made significant contributions to the Council and the community 
more broadly. The Southfest Sub Committee have been working to present a reimaged 
festival. 
 

110



  
  

 
2 

The Youth Sub Committee has completed an on-line survey and a forum. Information 
from the survey and forum is being used to inform our youth policy. Information is 
being shared with government and non-government agencies.  
 
A major disappointment was the deferment of the 2020 SouthFest. The proposal was 
to stage a reimagined SouthFest in smaller COVID safe events. An active committee 
is ready to deliver the next SouthFest when conditions allow a safe event. 
 
Council Meetings 
 
7 July 2020 7:30pm   Attendance 22 
Virtual Meeting - Zoom 
MLA/MP 

- Nicole Lawder MLA (Liberal, Brindabella) 
Speaker 

- Transport Canberra Network Changes – Peter Steele, Peter Steele, Senior Director with 
Transport Canberra 

 
4 August 2020 7:30pm  Attendance 21 
Virtual Meeting - Zoom 
MLA/MP 

- Nicole Lawder MLA (Liberal, Brindabella) 
Speaker 

- Mental health services in Tuggeranong with focus on youth services - Tracy Boomer, 
Youth Care and Community Engagement Officer, Headspace 

 
1 September 2020 7:30pm  Attendance 21 
Virtual Meeting - Zoom 
MLA/MP 

- Nicole Lawder: (Brindabella Liberal) 
Speaker 

- ACT Council of Social Service Inc. (ACTCOSS) - Dr Emma Campbell   
Chief Executive Officer 

 
Annual General Meeting 
 
6 October 2020 7:30p  Attendance 18 
Virtual Meeting - Zoom 
Speakers 

- Health Care Consumers Association (HCCA) - Darlene Cox, Executive Director 
 

4 November 2020 7:30pm  Attendance 31 
Virtual Meeting - Zoom 
MLA/MP 

- Mick Gentleman (Brindabella Labor) 
Speakers 

- Suburban Land Agency – Irena Sharp (Urban Projects Team) and Mark 
Overton 

- Evo Energy – Emily Brown, Group Manager 
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1 December 2020 7:30pm  Attendance 22 
Virtual Meeting - Zoom 
MLA/MP 

- Jonathan Davis (Brindabella Greens) 
Speaker 

- Regional Development Australia and the Canberra Regional Food 
Collaborative. Michael Claessens  
 

2 February 2021 7:30pm  Attendance 32 
Hybrid meeting at the Town Centre Vikings, Greenway and Zoom 
 MLA/MP 

- Mark Parton (Brindabella Liberal)  
- Jonathan Davis (Brindabella Greens) 

Speaker 
- Minister for the Environment, Minister for Heritage, Minister for 

Homelessness and Housing Services and Minister for Sustainable Building 
and Construction - Rebecca Vassarotti  

 
2 March 2021 7:30pm  Attendance 31 
Hybrid meeting at the Town Centre Vikings, Greenway and Zoom 
MLA/MP 

- Mark Parton (Brindabella Liberal)  
Speakers 

- Minister for Health; Families and Community Services; and Aboriginal and 
Torres Strait Islander Affairs - Rachel Stephen-Smith. 

- Canberra. Hospital Master Plan - Liz Lopa, Executive Group Manager, 
Strategic Infrastructure Division at ACT Health Directorate 

 
6 April 2021 7:30pm  Attendance 28 
Hybrid meeting at the Town Centre Vikings, Greenway and Zoom 
Speakers 

- Floating Wetlands Lake Tuggeranong - Ralph Ogden, Program Manager ACT 
Healthy Waterways Project 

- Latest Report of Lake Tuggeranong - Rod Ubrihien – Post Doctoral Fellow 
University of Canberra and with Stormwater Project and ACT Waterwatch 

 
 
4 May 2021 7:30pm   Attendance 25 
Hybrid meeting at the Town Centre Vikings, Greenway and Zoom 
Speakers  

- ACT Chief Engineer – Adrian Piani 
- Canberra Hospital -Master Plan – Liz Lopa 

 
 
1 June 2021 7:30pm  Attendance 33 
Hybrid meeting at the Town Centre Vikings, Greenway and Zoom 

- Nicole Lawder: (Brindabella Liberal)  
- Mark Parton (Brindabella Liberal)  

 
Speakers 
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- Southern Memorial Park - Emily Wadwell, a/g Assistant Director Engagement, 
Anne Breckworldt - TCCS; Phillip Shelly - CEO Canberra Cemeteries; Anna. 
Chauvel - Design Consultant (Place Laboratory) 

- Suburban Land Agency - SouthQuay Open Space - Mark Overton, Stakeholder 
Engagement. 

-  
 
 Minutes of meetings are published at www.tuggeranong.org.au . 
 
 
Other activities  
Monthly Committee Meetings and sub-committee meetings. 
 
 
 
Participated in the Combined Community Council forum. 
 
Submission to the Youth Metal Health. 
 
Represented community at Environment and Planning Forum and Evoenergy 
Consumer Reference Council (ECRC). 
 
Student awards presented at local high schools and colleges for Community Service. 
 
 
Future activities 
 
The focus of the TCC for the coming year is to enhance community engagement by the 
promotion of the Community Council as a representative organisation on behalf of all 
community members and stakeholders. Outreach to the community will include popups 
and representation at events hosted by others in Tuggeranong. 
 
Activities to aid in the recovery of community spirit as we come out of the COVID 
pandemic. 
 
Representation for renewal of infrastructure including roads, paths, playgrounds, and 
sporting facilities. 
 
Resumption of Southfest as a premier event to bring the Tuggeranong community 
together and promote Valley based community organisations. 
 
 

*  *  * 
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ANNEXURE B 

STATEMENT OF ACQUITTAL OF GRANT 
 
 
Recipient:  TUGGERANONG COMMUNITY COUNCIL INC 
 
Amount:  $12,821 (GST exclusive) 
 
Prior Year Unacquitted Funds: Not applicable 
 
Date of Grant:  
 
Purpose: The Funded Activity is specified in Schedule 2 of this Deed. 
 
I certify that the grant was expended for the above purpose, prior to the termination 
date, and in accordance with the Deed of Grant. 
  
I attach: Please 

tick 
1) A financial report. The financial report must include an income 

and expenditure statement highlighting the actual spending 
against the funds, including any particulars required in Schedule 
3. 

 

2) Financial statements in support of the financial statement to be 
provided to the Contact Officer as soon as available. The 
financial statements must be audited by an Approved Auditor (as 
defined in the Deed of Grant). 

 

3) An end of year report in the format specified in Annexure A of 
this Deed. 

 

4) Evidence of acknowledgment of the Territory as specified in 
Schedule 1. 

 

 
 
Signed: ....................................................................................................................... 
 
Name:            Jeffrey Ronald BOLLARD 
       
Date:       Sep 2021 
 
Position:   President 
   [Specify Chair/President/Treasurer/Secretary/Public Officer] 
 
Address:  
 
Witness signature: ………………………............................................................... 
 
Witness name: Cheryl Bollard 
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Cash Summary

Cash Summary  |  Tuggeranong Community Council Inc  |  10 September 2021   Page 1 of 1

Tuggeranong Community Council Inc 
Community 

For the 12 months ended 30 June 2021 
Excluding GST 

Jun 2021

Income 
Assessable Gov. Industry Payment 12,821
Interest Reveived 3
Total Income 12,824

Less Operating Expenses 
Advertising & Promotions 90
Communication Costs 1,789
Community Engagement 1,300
Insurance 3,690
Meeting Expensses 49
MV Car- Other 20
Office Operating Costs 530
Storage 278
Website Costs 135
Total Operating Expenses 7,882

Operating Surplus (Deficit) 4,942

GST Movements 
GST Inputs -
GST Outputs -
Net GST Movements -

Net Cash Movement 4,942

Summary 
Opening Balance -
Plus Net Cash Movement 4,942
Closing Balance 4,942
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Tuggeranong Community Council Incorporated
Trading As

Compilation Report to Tuggeranong Community Council Incorporated

We have compiled the accompanying special purpose financial statements of Tuggeranong Community Council

Incorporated, which comprise the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in
Equity, Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2021, a summary of significant

accounting policies and other explanatory notes. The specific purpose for which the special purpose financial statements

have been prepared is set out in Note 1 to the financial statements.

The Responsibility of the Director

The director of Tuggeranong Community Council Incorporated is solely responsible for the information contained in the

special purpose financial statements, the reliability, accuracy and completeness of the information and for the determination
that the basis of accounting used is appropriate to meet their needs and for the purpose that the financial statements were
prepared.

Our Responsibility

On the basis of information provided by the director, we have compiled the accompanying special purpose financial

statements in accordance with the basis of accounting as described in Note 1 to the financial statements and APES 315
Compilation of Financial Information. 

We have applied our expertise in accounting and financial reporting to compile these financial statements in accordance with

the basis of accounting described in Note 1 to the financial statements. We have complied with the relevant ethical
requirements of APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including Independence Standards).

Assurance Disclaimer

Since a compilation engagement is not an assurance engagement, we are not required to verify the reliability, accuracy or

completeness of the information provided to us by management to compile these financial statements. Accordingly, we do
not express an audit opinion or a review conclusion on these financial statements.

The special purpose financial statements were compiled exclusively for the benefit of the director who is responsible for the

reliability, accuracy and completeness of the information used to compile them. Accordingly, these special purpose financial
statements may not be suitable for other purposes. We do not accept responsibility for the contents of the special purpose

financial statements.

________________________________________

Needhams CPA's Pty Ltd

PO Box 1325

Tuggeranong ACT

31 August, 2021
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Tuggeranong Community Council Incorporated
Trading As

Detailed Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2021

Note 2021 2020

$ $

Current Assets

Cash Assets

TCC Membership Bank Account 3,750.30 2,349.59

TCC Community Account 15,105.64 9,999.64

TCC Term Deposit 7,690.27 7,601.14

TCC Debit Card 86.58 251.08

Southfest General Account 20,579.19 20,589.57

Southfest Debit Card 162.71 162.71

47,374.69 40,953.73

Total Current Assets 47,374.69 40,953.73

Total Assets 47,374.69 40,953.73

Net Assets 47,374.69 40,953.73

Equity
Retained profits / (accumulated losses) 47,374.69 40,953.73

Total Equity 47,374.69 40,953.73

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Tuggeranong Community Council Incorporated
Trading As

Detailed Profit and Loss Statement

For the year ended 30 June 2021

2021 2020

$ $

Income

Members Funds 800.00 1,102.83

SouthFest 80,769.25

Assessable gov. industry paymt 13,421.00 12,821.00

Interest received 82.96 11.55

Total income 14,303.96 94,704.63

Expenses

Advertising and promotion 90.25 80.50

Communication Costs 1,789.30 456.80

Community Engagement 1,300.13 429.00

Insurance 3,689.90 5,339.90

Meeting Expenses 49.00 518.80

M/V car - Other 20.00 975.37

Office Operating Costs 530.00 1,288.82

Replacements (tools, etc) 1,794.45

SouthFest Expenditure 71,206.95

Storage 278.00 1,267.50

Sub-committee 194.00

Website Costs 136.42 732.81

Total expenses 7,883.00 84,284.90

Profit from Ordinary Activities before income tax 6,420.96 10,419.73

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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ANNEXURE A 
COMMUNITY COUNCIL END OF YEAR REPORT 

2021 - 2022 
 
 

Community Council Name: Tuggeranong Community Council Incorporated 
 

Council objectives/ Mission statement 
 
 Objects and Purposes of the Association are:  

(a) To promote the interests of the Tuggeranong Valley community;  
(b) To enhance and improve the economic, cultural, social and environmental well-being 
of Tuggeranong residents, and community groups;  
(c) To identify community groups, and establish and maintain a close liaison amongst 
them;  
(d) To contribute to the physical and social planning of and the development of the 
Tuggeranong Valley;  
(e) To ensure that the interests of youth, the aged and other groups in the district are 
properly represented; and  
(f) To inform the community about matters affecting the Tuggeranong Valley. 

 
Highlights 
The Tuggeranong Community Council has maintained it schedule of monthly community 
meeting. In the first half of the reporting year the meeting were conducted on-line and then 
moving to hybrid meeting. The hybrid meetings allowed active participation for those joining 
on-line as well as those physically attending meeting. The hybrid format allows members the 
option of remaining at home avoiding travel at night and in the cold. The expectation is this 
form of meeting will continue into the future. It noted at members welcome the opportunity to 
come together in the in-person component of the meetings. 
 
The TCC combined with the Weston Creek Community Council and Molonglo Forum to host a 
federation election forum for ACT senate and Bean Electorate Council. The forum was well 
received by voters and a single combined forum was appreciated by candidates during a busy 
election campaign. 
 
The TCC conducted a youth survey and followed up with a youth forum. Issues identified 
through the survey and explored further at the forum allowed youth views to be heard and also 
promoted discussion with Transport Canberra and City Services, ACT Policing, youth mental 
health services and local youth services. 
 
The Planning, Transport and Communications Sub-Committee has been activity and 
contributed on planning issues. 

Representative engagement 
The TCC conducts five sub-committees being: 

Community, Health and Wellbeing 
Environment and Sustainability 
Planning, Transport and Communications 
Youth 
SouthFest 

 
The sub-committees meet regularly providing the opportunity for a wider group of participants 
to influence the agenda and work program of the TCC. The Youth Sub-Committee is a 
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particular example where senior high school, college and tertiary students can participate at 
time that suit them. The youth representatives have also influenced the questions of the youth 
survey and reported to the monthly community meetings on youth issues. 

 
Council Meetings 
 

6 July 2021 7:30pm       Attendance 32 
Virtual Meeting - Zoom  
 
Speakers  

- Youth and Youth Affairs – Daisy Matsika, Thomas Griffith, and Glenys Patulny Youth 
Sub-Committee. 

- Youth Mental Health - Mahri Henderson and Sandi McGowan of headspace 
Tuggeranong 

- Emma Davidson MLA, Minster for Mental Health. 
 
3 August 2021 7:30      Attendance 18 
Hybrid – Town Centre Vikings Greenway and Zoom 
 
Speakers 

- Traffic and development around Woden - Implications for Tuggeranong 
Ben McHugh, Transport Canberra and City Services (TCCS) and 
Wayne Ford, Project Director for Woden CIT and Interchange Design.  

- Canberra Hospital Update – Liz Lopa 
 
7 September 2021 7:30      Attendance 35 
Virtual Meeting – Zoom 
 
MLA updates – Nicole Lawder, Mark Parton, Peter Cain and Mick Gentleman 
 

- Planning reforms and changes to legislation, the Tuggeranong District Plan and 
development application process - Mick Gentleman, MLA and Louise Crossman (Senior 
Advisor) 

 
5 October 2021 7:30      Attendance 35 
Virtual Meeting – Zoom 

 

MP and MLA updates – David Smith MP, Mark Parton, Nicole Lawder and Peter Cain 
 
Speakers 

- COPING with COVID 
- Support for the individual - Wellways - Jim Jacobs, Arnold Ogbac, Nora Chan 
- Support for business - Brendan Smyth - Commissioner for International Engagement, 

Chief Minister, Treasury Economic Development Directorate. 
 
 
2 November 2021 7:30     Attendance 33 
Virtual Meeting – Zoom 
 
MP and MLA updates – David Smith MP, Nicole Lawder and Johnathan Davis 
 

- Tidbinbilla and Namadgi - Pete Cotsell – Manager for Southern Parks Namadgi. 
- Icon Water – Lisa Quinn and Isabel Thompson 
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7 December 2021 7:30     Attendance 24 
Hybrid – Town Centre Vikings Greenway and Zoom 
 
MLA updates –Nicole Lawder 
 
Speaker 

- Big Battery - Sam Engele - Coordinator General for Climate Action 
 
 
1 February 2022 7:30       Attendance 26 
Virtual Meeting – Zoom 
 
MLA updates –Johnathan Davis 
Introduction of Kim Rubenstein – Senate Candidate 
 
Speakers 

- Look Back at Air Quality in Tuggeranong - Darryl Johnston 
- Bush Fire Smoke and Air Quality Strategy - Minister for Environment Rebecca 

Vassarotti MLA 
 
1 March 2022 7:30      Attendance 29 
Virtual Meeting – Zoom 
 
MLA updates –Nicole Lawder and Johnathan Davis 
Introduction of Jane Hiatt – candidate for Bean 

 
Speakers 

- We want our lake back! 
- Lake Tuggeranong Water Quality - Dr Ralph Ogden, Program Manager, ACT Healthy 

Waterways 
- Foreshore Redevelopment - Harvey Bell, Chair of Planning, Transport and 

Communications Sub-Committee    
- The Leaf Collective   Sharyn Rundle-Thiele Griffith University and representative of 

The Leaf Collective 
 
5 April 2022 7:30      Attendance 29 
Hybrid – Town Centre Vikings Greenway and Zoom 
 
MP update – David Smith MP 
 
Speakers 

- Internet and Internet Connections 
- Internet Connectivity - Steve Ulrich - a member of Glen Eagles NBN committee  
- What can the Federal Government do for us– David Smith, Member for Bean 

 
 
3 May 2022 7:30      Attendance 28 
Hybrid – Town Centre Vikings Greenway and Zoom 
 
MLA Updates – Mark Parton 
 
Speakers 
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- EvoEnergy - Poles, Wires and Trees - Keeping the Power On – EVO Energy 
- Derrin Limbrick and Bronwen Butterfield 

 
 
7 June 2022 7:30     Attendance 24 
Hybrid – Town Centre Vikings Greenway and Zoom 
 
MLA Updates - Johnathan Davis and Mark Parton 
 
Speakers 

- ACT Planning Bill 
- Geoff Pryor, Convener of Canberra Planning and Action Group (CPAG) 
- Richard Johnston - experienced Town Planner 
- Harvey Bell - TCC Planning Sub Committee 

 
Other activities 

Monthly Committee Meetings and sub-committee meetings.  
 

The TCC has made submission on: 
 Draft Planning Bill 

Draft Urban Forest Bill 
DA 202138789, Block 1, Section 3, Symonston, ACT, 99 Mugga Lane and 
amended DA 202138789 
Draft Action Plan to Prevent the Loss of Mature Native Trees  
Select Committee on the Covid-19 2021 Pandemic Response, Act Legislative 
Assembly   
Active Transport Plan 

 
Youth survey and forum. 
 
Participated in the Combined Community Council forum. 
 
 

Future activities 
 
Representation on ACT Territory Plan and District Strategy 
 
Resumption of Southfest as a premier event to bring the Tuggeranong community together and 
promote Valley based community organisations. 
 
Represented community at Environment and Planning Forum and Evoenergy Consumer 
Reference Council (ECRC).  
 
Student awards presented at local high schools and colleges for Community Service. 
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Account 2022

Assessable Gov. Industry Payment 12,821.00

Interest Received 30.97

Total Trading Income 12,851.97

Gross Profit 12,851.97

Communication Costs 662.89

Community Engagement 1,069.19

Equipment 79.00

Insurance 3,689.90

Meeting Expensses 405.00

Office Operating Costs 3,079.05

Website Costs 727.00

Total Operating Expenses 9,712.03

Net Profit 3,139.94

Profit and Loss

Operating Expenses

Trading Income

For the year ended 30 June 2022

Tuggeranong Community Council Inc

 Community

128





    

     

       

 
    

  
  

  

 
   

  
  

 
 

  
  

   
  

 
  

  

       

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

130



    

     
     

   

  

  
     

    

    
    
     

    

    

   

   

 
    

   

   

   

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 
 
 

131







 

 

 

 

3 

 

 
 
www.westoncreek.org.au 
info@westoncreek.org.au 

PO Box 3701 
Weston Creek ACT 2611 

Telephone 0458 756 034 

 

 

Weston Creek Community Council Inc.—End of Year Report 2020-2021 
 

Much of the information sought in the End of Year Report can be found on the website of the 

Weston Creek Community Council (WCCC), which can be found at www.westoncreek.org.au 

 

Council Objectives/Mission Statement 
 

The objectives of the Weston Creek Community Council are stated in the Constitution of the 

Council, Part 1, Section 5, which appears below: 

 

“5. Objects and Purposes 
(1) The objects and purposes of The Council are: 

(a) To promote the interests of the Weston Creek community; 

(b) To enhance and improve the economic, cultural, social and environmental 

wellbeing of Weston Creek residents, and community groups; 

(c) To identify community groups, and establish and maintain close liaison 

amongst them; 

(d) To contribute to the physical and social planning of, and the development of, 

Weston Creek; 

(e) To ensure that the interests of youth, the aged and other groups in Weston 

Creek are properly represented; and 

(f) To inform the community about matters affecting Weston Creek.” 

 

Our mission is to work together to craft Weston Creek into a vibrant, artistic, sporting, creative, 

healthy, and safe community where the vulnerable are supported and all residents and 

businesses, young and old, are provided opportunities to thrive and enjoy peaceful living. 

(Weston Creek Community Council Stakeholder Plan 2021, 14 May 2021). 
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Highlights 
 

The 2020-2021 year has been a period of significant challenges for Canberra, the Weston Creek 

Community and the Weston Creek Community Council. Challenges include: 

 The renewal of Council as key figures for the last decade move to new stages in their lives 

 Ensuring Council’s operations are consistent with the expectations contained in the Deed 

of Grant and the authorizing legislation as well ensuring the views of the broader 

community are both understood and ably represented.  

 Council continues to be a forum for residents to have their views considered as 

prospective Development Applications work their way through the legislated and 

administrative processes 

 Council was involved in consideration of Development Applications in Wright, Coombs 

and Weston. Some of these were quite controversial and “stretched the boundaries” of the 

Planning Law as we understand it.  

 Council was involved in two significant matters before the ACT Civil and Administrative 

Tribunal, being:   

o The Village Building Co appealed the rejection of their plans for the 

redevelopment of the old police college site in Weston. This appeal was rejected. 

Council welcomes the recent release of revised estate plans for public 

consultation. 

o The ACT Government announced a proposal to build a temporary car park on the 

area of open space (affectionately dubbed ‘Coolo Park’) in Watling Street, 

Weston. The government eventually withdrew the proposal as Directions 

Hearings were about to commence, instead diverting the funds towards the 

needed upgrade of Brierly Street. 

 Council welcomes the decision to upgrade Brierly Street which is a deliverable of the 

Weston Creek Centre Master Plan. We conducted a successful survey on the proposal, 

seeking the community’s views on what they would like to see in this upgrade. In addition 

to over 200 people completing the survey questions, we received 35 pages of free text 

responses appended to the survey. The anonymised results were provided to the 

government.  

 Community engagement has been enhanced with the live-streaming and recording of 

public meetings, making them more accessible to a greater number of people within 

Weston Creek. A video recording of all meetings are now available for later viewing.  

 A successful Meet the Candidates Forum for the 2020 ACT Election was held with 11 

candidates and the event being live-streamed by both The.Riotact and Council’s channels. 

Over 1500 individual views were recorded across the channels.  
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Issues 
 

We identified a number of issues during the year: 

 

 The safety of motorists, cyclists and pedestrians in and around Weston Creek 

 

o The increased traffic created by the establishment of the Molonglo Valley places 

pressure on the current road system, especially the Streeton Drive corridor and Cotter 

Road. In our submission on the 2021-22 budget, we sought funding to redesign and 

maintain the entire corridor, including intersections at Mulley and Hilder Streets with 

Streeton Drive.  

o The Molonglo east/west arterial exit needs to be fast tracked to take the pressure off 

vehicles entering and exiting Weston Creek via Cotter Road. There is anecdotal evidence 

that this has led to increased traffic on suburban streets as commuters attempt to avoid 

the congestion on Cotter Road. We have written to the government outlining our 

concerns with the unsafe driving that is occurring due to ‘rat running’ in the suburbs. 

o A dedicated bicycle lane is needed for the entire Cotter Road to Mount Stromlo Road to 

improve cyclist safety 

o The cycle route C5 for off road cyclists needs to be widened to improve cyclists’ safety. 

 

 Preservation of green open spaces - Cooleman Park needs to be rezoned to its original green 

open space and rehabilitated. 

 

 Air quality in Weston Creek 

 

o Weston Creek experiences continual problems with air quality from smoke, pollen and 

dust. Council has been raising residents’ valid concerns with the Government, 

suggesting that the installation of an air quality monitoring station in Weston Creek 

would provide essential data to inform decision making as well improving the quality of 

life for the residents. This will continue to be a focus of Council’s advocacy activities in 

the future years. 

 

Other issues identified during the year include: 

 

 Law and order remains an issue and there is a need for a permanent presence of police in 

Weston Creek and Molonglo. 

 Dangerous driving including burn outs, speeding and general bad driving are contributing to 

a feeling of insecurity in the area. An increased police presence may help to overcome this 

issue. 

 An upgraded Community Centre that is sized to the needs of the population would provide 

for an essential hub for many community groups. At present, many groups are leading a 

nomadic existence hunting for the elusive meeting space.  Council intends to escalate this 

important issue. 

 Upgrade to Cooleman Court shop area and playgrounds. 

 Car parking and pedestrian safety at Cooleman Court, especially in the South car park. 

Council has made a number of submissions on this issue to the local MLAs and the Transport 

and City Services Minister.  

 Park and Ride for the bus network needs to be positioned to meet current and future demand. 

Council considers the site at the end of Hindmarsh Drive, Chapman currently used as a bus 

terminus would be suitable. 
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 The ongoing failure to provide public toilets for Fetherston Gardens is a disincentive for the 

community to use this facility for gatherings. Council cannot understand the inertia on this 

issue. 

 

Council Meetings 
 

The minutes of all WCCC meetings are on the WCCC website (on the home page, go to menu 

item Meetings). 

 

During the year, the Council developed a number of specific documents/issues for WCCC 

including: Conflict of Interest, Constitution, Stakeholder Plan. Council has engaged with 

Volunteering ACT to develop specific guidance for the incoming committee on important 

governance issues. 

 

A summary of the main details of Public Meetings is attached to this report. Please note that no 

general meetings are held in December and January. No public meetings were held in July and 

August 2020 due to the COVID pandemic and government restrictions. The Council committee 

continued to meet regularly via Zoom during this period, as well as maintaining regular 

telephone and email contact. 

 

Delivery of public meetings 
 
The reporting period began with restrictions on public gatherings due to the COVID pandemic. 

During this time, the Council purchased digital and electronic communications equipment, both 

from ongoing funds and a grant from the 2019/20 Participation (Digital Communities) Grants 

program. On 30 September 2020, the Council resumed public meetings at the Weston Creek 

Community Centre with a Meet the Candidates Forum in the lead up to the ACT general 

election in October 2020. The meeting was sold out (in accordance with allowable density 

numbers) but other residents were able to follow the forum as it was filmed and broadcast on the 

night.   

 

The Council has decided to continue to hire the Weston Creek Community Centre hall. The 

larger venue enables public meetings to be held while observing the COVID safety 

requirements. The lighting and acoustics in the hall are considerably better than that at the 

Council’s previous meeting place, the Weston Club. The improved lighting and acoustics has 

enabled the streaming of the public meetings through the Council’s Facebook page. 

 

The filming and broadcasting of public meetings via Facebook has continued to attract a larger 

number of residents. This has proved invaluable during a time of health and safety restrictions 

and resident’s wariness of attending events. The digital streaming of meetings has enlarged the 

community audience from approximately 120 to 620 viewers depending on a meeting’s topic 

and speaker. The Council is therefore reaching more members in the community who are able to 

provide questions on the night or follow up issues with the Council either directly or by 

Facebook. This extra engagement has better informed the Council on the issues within the 

Weston Creek community. 

 

The Council introduced an Acknowledgement of Country at its public meetings in recognition 

of the traditional owners of the country.  
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Council has also increased audience participation in its public meetings through a scheduled 

time for a question-and-answer segment. Issues have emerged through this segment that 

otherwise may not attract appropriate attention. 

 

The Council continues to communicate to the community through its Website, Facebook page, 

email on a planned basis and a flyer when needed in Cooleman Court. 

 

Other Activities 
 

We have engaged in activities that encourage community engagement and wellbeing. 

 

Floriade in the Burbs 

 

In early 2020, the ACT Government cancelled the Floriade Festival due to COVID restrictions. 

In its place Floriade went to the suburbs. We successfully applied for inclusion in Floriade in 

the Burbs and in September 2020 held a community event to open the first of our plantings. This 

was well attended by families and people at the adjoining aged care village who helped with the 

planting of the site. We made a video of the first Floriade in the Burbs from planting to opening 

which has received many views on our Facebook page. The Floriade patch at Chapman proved 

popular with 2,000 views of the video on Facebook. The scarecrows erected at the site were well 

received and the children at Chapman Primary School took an active interest. 

 

The success of the first planting led to a second community event on 6 June 2020 when about 30 

people (young and old) helped to plant the bulbs and annuals for our second Floriade in the 

Burbs. An article on this planting day appeared in the Canberra Times (attached). The 

community has adopted the garden and people have been seen stopping to weed while out 

walking.  

 

With the second lockdown in 2021, the scarecrow workshop planned to coincide with the 

opening of the garden had to be changed. Instead a scarecrow competition was held and people 

asked to set them up outside their homes. This competition proved to be popular and was 

supported by the local MLA, Dr Marisa Paterson, who judged the competition and placed the 

results on her website. 

 

The Floriade planting at Chapman has been a good community activity involving school 

children and members of the community in the set-up, care of and pull down of the patch. 

 

Christmas in Trennery Square  

 

On 8 December 2020, the Council committee, together with family, friends and Dr Marisa 

Paterson MLA, decorated Trennery Square in Weston to help bring some joy to people still 

recovering from the long lockdown in 2020. Nine people helped to decorate the square and a 

live Christmas tree. Anecdotal evidence and comments from the traders near the square showed 

that it was warmly welcomed by the community with people stopping to look at the decorations 

and taking photographs. Traders in the area indicated that they would be interested in supporting 

the Council if it decided to decorate the square in 2021. 

 

On-line Surveys 

 

We conducted two surveys with the community to find their views on the upgrade to Brierly 

Street and the other on what they looked for in an inspiring MLA. The results of the Brierly 

Street survey are mentioned in the Highlights section of this report. 
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Unspent funds 
 
The Council expended its unspent funds from the 2019-2020 Deed of Grant as shown below: 

 

 Additional digital and electronic equipment to facilitate streaming and online public 

meetings as required; 

 Filming and broadcast of the Meet the Candidates Forum held on 30 September 2020; and 

 The Floriade in the Burbs events and Christmas in Trennery Square. 

 

Due to further restrictions imposed by COVID in 2021, the Council has not been able to proceed 

with an event to promote further community engagement. This event will now take place in the 

first half of 2022 (probably March) depending on any further restrictions that may arise due to 

the COVID pandemic. Minister Emma Davidson and MLAs Giulia Jones and Dr Marisa 

Paterson have already been supportive of the early concepts.  

 

Future Activities 
 

In June 2020, the Council was successful in receiving two grants to undertake arts programs. 

 

Grant 1: Indigenous art to activate Trennery Square. This grant will allow the Council to 

contract indigenous artists to paint totems or other structures that will be erected in Trennery 

Square. 

 

Grant 2: Street mural art. This grant will allow the Council to contract a mural artist to paint a 

wall in Weston Creek and to run a workshop for community volunteers (young and old) to help 

paint a second wall. This activity is planned to coincide with the Street Art Festival being held 

in Braddon. The Festival has been deferred until 4-5 March 2022. 

 

The activities were to be completed by end 2021 but the lockdown has prevented any action 

being taken. The ACT Government has advised that the grants have been extended to 30 June 

2022 which will allow the Council to undertake the projects in March 2022.  

 

In addition to these grant activities and an event to promote further community engagement, the 

Council proposes to again decorate Trennery Square for Christmas and to take part in another 

Floriade in the Burbs if this event takes place in 2022. 
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Schedule 3, Special Conditions 
 

Items of expenditure of $1,000 or more 

 

The Council is reporting on the following items of expenditure in accordance with Schedule 3 of 

the Deed of Grant. 

 

Public liability insurance 

Supplier AON Risk Services Australia 

 

Product public liability insurance 

 

Cost $2,065.14 

 

Invoice I10684069, 23 October 2020 

 

Purpose To provide insurance coverage for the operations and activities of the 

Weston Creek Community Council 2 November 2020 to 2 November 2021 

 

 

 

Film and broadcast of Meet the Candidates Forum, 30 September 2020 

Supplier Candlelight Pictures 

 

Product outside broadcast and PA system 

 

Cost $1,650.00 

 

Invoice wccc30.09.20, 30 September 2020 

 

Purpose To film and broadcast the Meet the Candidates Forum to enable the 

community to view online due to COVID density restrictions on physical 

attendance in the Weston Creek Community Centre. 

 

 

Portable PA and microphones  

Supplier  Soundgear Australia Pty Ltd 

 

Product  portable PA and microphones 

 

Cost  $2,369.00 

 

Invoice 14149, 21 May 2021 

 

Purpose To replace an ageing PA system to improve quality of sound within the venue 

and the online streaming of meetings 
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Floriade Reimagined 2021 

Supplier:  Canberra Sand and Gravel Pty Ltd 

 

Product:  compost soil and sugar cane 

 

Cost:  $1,207.00 

 

Invoice:  31234:72 and 31232:72, 6 June 2021 

 

Purpose:  To enable the development of garden beds for the Floriade 2021 project on 

the corner of Streeton Drive and Darwinia Street, Chapman 

 

 

Acknowledgement of the Territory 
 

In accordance with Item 6 of Schedule 1 to the Deed of Grant, the Council acknowledges the 

funding support provided by the ACT Government on its website, letterhead, and flyers and 

newsletters circulated to the community (see articles appended to the acquittal). 
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www.westoncreek.org.au 
info@westoncreek.org.au 

PO Box 3701 
Weston Creek ACT 2611 

Telephone 0458 756 034 

 

 

Interim Chair’s report to the Weston Creek Community Council 

 
What a year 2020-2021 was when you look back. We came out of the Bushfire Emergency and 

straight into Covid-19. Two Periods of natural disaster, back-to-back!  Clearly a period of 

significant challenge for Canberra, the Weston Creek Community, and the Weston Creek 

Community Council. Challenges include: 

 The renewal of Council as key figures for the last decade move on to new stages in their 

lives. 

 Ensuring Council’s operations are consistent with the expectations contained in the Deed 

of Grant and the authorizing legislation while ensuring the views of the broader 

community are both understood and ably represented.  

 Council was involved in consideration of Development Applications in Wright, Coombs 

and Weston. Some of these were quite controversial and “stretched the boundaries” of the 

Planning Law seemingly.  

 Council was also involved in two significant matters before the ACT Civil and 

Administrative Tribunal. Both successfully resolved.  

 Community engagement has been enhanced with the live-streaming and recording of 

public meetings, making them more accessible to a greater number of people within 

Weston Creek. A video recording of all meetings is now available for later viewing.  

 

 A successful Meet the Candidates Forum for the 2020 ACT Election was held with 11 

candidates and the event being live-streamed by both The_Riotact and Council’s channels. 

Over 1500 individual views were recorded across the channels.  

 

Issues 
 

Key issues raised during the year: 

 

 The safety of motorists, cyclists and pedestrians in and around Weston Creek 

 Preservation of open spaces – ‘Coolo Park’ needs to be rezoned to its original green open 

space and rehabilitated. 

 Air quality in Weston Creek 
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Other issues identified during the year include: 

 

 Law and order remains an issue and the need for a permanent police presence in Weston 

Creek is still a high priority. 

 Dangerous driving. 

 An upgraded Community Centre that is sized to the needs of the population would provide 

for an essential hub for many community groups.  

 Upgrade to Cooleman Court shop area and playgrounds. 

 Car parking and pedestrian safety at Cooleman Court, especially in the South car park.  

 Park and Ride for the bus network needs to be positioned to meet current and future 

demand.  

 The ongoing failure to provide public toilets for Fetherston. The Community cannot 

understand the inertia on this issue. 

 

Other Activities 
 

We have engaged in activities that encourage community engagement and wellbeing. Notably:  

 

 Floriade in the Burbs 

 Christmas in Trennery Square  

 

Working with Murrumbidgee MLAs 

 

We have interacted with all Murrumbidgee MLAs over the last year. I must say all interactions 

have been courteous and positive. While we may not have always achieved our desired 

outcomes, we were certainly given a fair hearing. Special mention must be made of those MLAs 

who attend our public meetings and other activities, often after a long day of Assembly work.    

 

Volunteering 

 

A number of residents have volunteered to assist Council over the past year, while not formally 

joining the Committee. It is often those little bits of practical help and guidance that are the 

difference between success and failure. Myself, and the committee would like to express our 

gratitude to those individuals.   

 

Incoming Committee 

 

Some new faces have nominated to join the Council Committee for the 2021-22 year. I must say 

I am really looking forward to working with these people, who bring their own unique skill sets 

to Council, along with a strong sense of community advocacy and engagement. 

 

Acknowledgement of departing Committee members 

 

Janice Paull and Shelby Schofield have both indicated that they no longer wish to remain on 

Council’s Committee after the AGM due to personal and professional commitments. We wish 

them all the best and they will be truly missed due to their special skills.   

 

Bill Gemmell 

Interim Chair 

Weston Creek Community Council 

27 October 2021 
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Weston Creek Community Council Activities through 2020-2021 
 

1. Meetings and Presentations 
 

Due to the COVID pandemic and government restrictions, no public meetings were held in July 

and August 2020. The first public meeting began with a Meet the Candidates Forum on 

30 September 2020 leading up to the ACT election in October 2020. 

 

Council arranged a series of presentations to the community at our Public Meetings, including: 

 

 30 September 2020  

a. Meet the Candidates Forum for the October ACT election 11 Candidates spoke and 

answered questions from both attendees in the Centre and those viewing online. 

 

 28 October 2020 

a. Presentation by Inspector Ross Williams (Woden Police) – ACT Police update on 

Weston Creek and Molonglo Valley  

 

 25 November 2020 

a. Annual General Meeting – no presentations  

 

 24 February 2021 

a. Presentation by David Jones, ACT Health on Master Plan for Canberra Hospital  

b. 5 minute presentations by MLAs Guilia Jones, Emma Davidson, Dr Marisa Paterson 

 

 31 March 2021 

a. Presentation by Mr Nick McDonald Crowley of the Snow Group – update on 

Denman Prospect Stage 2 

b. Presentation by Mr John Nikolic of Verdant Developments – demonstration housing 

project in Weston 

c. Presentation by Mr Bill Gemmell (WCCC Committee) – report on WCCC survey 

concerning Brierly Street upgrade 

d. 5 minutes presentations by MLAs Emma Davidson and Dr Marisa Paterson 

 

 28 April 2021 

a. Presentation by Mr David Jones, ACT Health – update on Phase 2 of the Master 

Plan for the Canberra Hospital 

b. 5 minute presentations by MLAs Guilia Jones, Emma Davidson, Dr Marisa Paterson 
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 26 May 2021 

a. Presentation by Ms Yolandi Veemar – WOMBAT RESCUE 

b. Presentation by Ms Kirsten Duncan of the Conservation Council – ACT gas free 

project 

c. 5 minute presentations by MLAs Emma Davidson, Dr Marisa Paterson 

 

 30 June 2021 

a. Presentation by Chris Steel, Minister for Transport, City Services, Roads and Active 

Travel – Brierly Street upgrade, road constructions including Tuggeranong Parkway 

and John Gorton Drive and Transport Recovery Plan 

b. Presentation by Mr Richard Henty, ACT Transport and City Services – upgrade to 

Duffy Shops 

c. Presentation by Mr Bill Gemmell (Interim Chair WCCC) – overview of residents’ 

concerns on parking, traffic and transport 

d. 5 minute presentations by MLAs Emma Davidson, Guilia Jones 

 

2. Submissions and Correspondence 
 

Council made several submissions on behalf of the community including: 

 

 Submissions 

o Draft Variation related to the Curtin Horse Paddocks 

o Molonglo Lease Variation on community land 

o Urban Forest Strategy  

o Development Application 202037798 John Gorton Drive 

o 2021/2022 Budget 

o Lake Burley Griffin heritage listing  

o Inquiry into Renewable Energy Innovation in the ACT 

o Duffy Shops upgrade  

o ACT Natural Resources Management Plan (NRMP).  

o Canberra Hospital Master Plan.  

o Southern Memorial Park   
 

Correspondence 

 

 Traffic concerns to Minister Chris Steel and all other Murrumbidgee MLAs 

 Rezoning of Cooleman Park to Mick Gentleman, Marisa Paterson, Chris Steel, Giulia 

Jones, Emma Davidson, Jeremy Hanson. 

 General discussion on issues affecting Weston Creek to Minister Chris Steele 

 Raider’s Club deconcessionalistion to Richard Nash and Naina Agawal 

 De-concessionalisation consultation pamphlet to Richard Nash 

 Woolworths loading dock concerns to Irini Daglis, Manager of Mirvac, Cooleman Court, 

and TCCS 
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3. Working Groups and Committees 
 

Public Inquiries 

 

Council did not appear before any public inquiries. 

 

Other Forums 

 

 Planning and Development Forum – ACT Planning and Land Authority 

 Canberra Airport Community Aviation Consultation Group 

 Combined Community Councils Forum 

 Combined Community Council meetings – Chaired 2 meetings in 2019/2020 

 Weston Creek Community Association Committee 

 Territory Plan Review Forum (Taskforce) 

 

Appearances and Meetings 

 

Members of the WCCC committee: 

 

 Met with MLA Chris Steel MLA, Minister for Transport 

 Met with Mick Gentleman MLA 

 Met with Jeremy Hanson and Giulia Jones MLA 

 Met with Mr David Smith, Senator for the Australian Capital Territory 

 Met with Dr Marissa Patterson MLA 

 Met with Emma Davidson MLA 

 Met with Transport Canberra on the Weston Creek and Molonglo Bus Network 

 Met with Namatjira Drive Safety improvements team 

 Zoom meeting with officials from the Suburban Land Agency 

 Met with the Village Building Company concerning a proposed development on the old 

Australian Federal Police College site in Weston 

 

Attended hearings held by the ACT Civil & Administrative Tribunal (ACAT) concerning 

appeals for reconsideration of Development Applications for the following developments: 

 Village Building Company redevelopment of the old Australian Federal Police College 

site in Weston 

 Temporary car park at Watling Place, Weston 

 

4. Media 
 

Members of the WCCC committee: 

 

 Produced and circulated flyers for each public meeting through Cooleman Court 

 Gave radio interviews on 2CC and ABC Radio 666 during the year 

 Spoke to journalists and had articles in 

o The Canberra Times 

o The RiotAct 

o Canberra Weekly 

 Continually updated the WCCC website 

 Continually updated the WCCC Facebook page 
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Summary of WCCC Public Meetings 
 

Public meetings were held at the Weston Creek Community Centre, Parkinson Street, Weston. 

All meetings commenced at or around 7.30pm. In addition to attendees, the meetings were live 

streamed via facebook. 

 

30 September 2020 

 

 

 

 

 

30 attendees plus online 

viewers 

6 committee members 

Meet the Candidates Forum 

for the October ACT election 

11 Candidates spoke and 

answered questions from both 

attendees in the Centre and 

those viewing online. 

 

28 October 2020 

 

 

 

 

 

20 attendees plus online 

viewers 

5 committee members 

Presentation by Inspector 

Ross Williams (Woden 

Police) – ACT Police update 

on Weston Creek and 

Molonglo Valley 

 

General Meeting - reports by 

WCCC Committee on 

activities and outcome to 

representations. 

 

25 November 2020 

 

 

 

23 attendees plus online 

viewers 

6 committee members 

Annual General Meeting 

 

 

No public meetings are held in December/January 

 

 

24 February 2021 

 

 

 

 

18 attendees 

115 facebook views  

5 committee members 

Presentation by David Jones, 

ACT Health on the Master 

Plan for the Canberra Hospital  

 

5 minute presentations - 

MLAs Guilia Jones, Emma 

Davidson, Dr Marisa Paterson 

 

General Meeting - reports by 

WCCC Committee on 

activities and outcome to 

representations. 
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31 March 2021 16 attendees plus online 

viewers 

6 committee members 

Presentation by Mr Nick 

McDonald Crowley of the 

Snow Group – update on 

Denman Prospect Stage 2 

 

Presentation by Mr John 

Nikolic of Verdant 

Developments – 

demonstration housing project 

in Weston 

 

Presentation by Mr Bill 

Gemmell (WCCC Committee) 

– report on WCCC survey 

concerning Brierly Street 

upgrade 

 

5 minute presentations - 

MLAs: Emma Davidson, Dr 

Marisa Paterson  

 

General Meeting - reports by 

WCCC Committee on 

activities and outcome to 

representations. 

 

28 April 2021 6 attendees plus others who 

signed in via QR codes 

271 unique facebook views 

5 committee members 

Presentation by Mr David 

Jones, ACT Health – update 

on Phase Two of the Master 

Plan for the Canberra Hospital 

 

5 minutes presentations -  

MLAs: Guilia Jones, Emma 

Davidson, Dr Marisa Paterson 

 

General Meeting - reports by 

WCCC Committee on 

activities and outcome to 

representations and new 

session – ‘Have Your Say’ 

from the Floor 
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26 May 2021 14 attendees plus others who 

signed in via QR codes 

623 unique facebook views on 

day and following days 

7 committee members 

Presentation by Ms Yolandi 

Veemar – WOMBAT 

RESCUE 

 

Presentation by Ms Kirsten 

Duncan of the Conservation 

Council on the ACT gas free 

project 

 

5 minutes presentations - 

MLAs: Emma Davidson ,Dr 

Marisa Paterson 

 

General Meeting - reports by 

WCCC Committee on 

activities and outcome to 

representations and ‘Have 

Your Say’ from the floor 

 

30 June 2021 14 attendees sign in and others 

signed in via QR codes 

340 unique facebook views at 

1 July 2021 

4 committee members 

Presentation by Chris Steel, 

Minister for Transport, City 

Services, Roads and Active 

Travel – Brierly Street 

upgrade, road constructions 

including Tuggeranong 

Parkway and John Gorton 

Drive and Transport Recovery 

Plan 

 

Presentation by Mr Richard 

Henty, ACT Transport and 

City Services – upgrade to 

Duffy Shops 

 

Presentation by Mr Bill 

Gemmell (Interim Chair 

WCCC) – overview of 

residents’ concerns on 

parking, traffic and transport 

 

5 minutes presentations -  

MLAs: Emma Davidson, 

Guilia Jones 

 

General Meeting - reports by 

WCCC Committee on 

activities and outcome to 

representations and ‘Have 

Your Say’ from the floor 
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www.wccc.com.au 

info@wccc.com.au 

PO Box 3701 

Weston Creek ACT 2611 

Telephone (02) 6288 8975 

 

Weston Creek Community Council Financial Report 

1 July 2020–30 June 2021 

Revenue Statement for the Year Ending 30 June 2021 

 

Balance Brought Forward: $7,684.28 (A) 

Income    

Grant, ACT Chief Minister’s Directorate $12,821.00  

2-19-20 Participation (Digital Communities Grant) $3,081.00  

Interest $1.73  

Income (B) $15,903.73 (B) $15,903.73 (B)  

Total Income  (A + B)  $23,588.01 

   

Expenditure   

Public liability insurance $2,065.14   

Hire of hall for public meetings and meeting room $1,323.00  

Annual subscriptions for Zoom, Survey Monkey and 

Adobe Premier Pro Plan 

$1,125.59 
 

WCCC website maintenance $783.20   

Dongle monthly recharge $240.00  

Auditor $385.00   

Telstra, White Pages $327.36   

Internet, Monthly phone line rental $94.91   

Printing of public meeting and other papers $122.85   

Post Office Box renewal $136.00   
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Application fees for Australian Capital Territory Civil 

& Administrative Tribunal (ACAT) – Temporary 

carpark Weston 

$366.50 

 

Parking – attendance ACAT hearings $173.07  

Bank fees $29.00   

Film and broadcast Meet the Candidates Forum 30 

September 2020 

$1,650.00 
 

Christmas in Trennery Square $961.21  

Floriade Re-imagined- compost soil & sugar cane for 

planting of bulbs  

$1,207.00 
 

Portable PA and microphones and mic stand adaptor $2,412.00  

Mobile broadband dongle and access $99.00  

Mobile phone for Council contact and business 

number 

$49.00 
 

ACT Association Search Request fee $27.00  

Total Expenditure (C) $13,576.83 $13,576.83 (C) 

   

Balance for Financial Year 2020–2021: (A+B) - C  $10,011.18 

Represented by balance of   $10,011.18 

   

 Payment for a mobile dongle and access ($99.00) and parking for attendance at ACAT hearings ($47.50) made 

in error from the Fetherston Gardens account. A total of $146.50 was transferred from the Smallbiz account to the 

Fetherston Gardens account to correct the error. 
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Revenue Statement for the Year Ending 30 June 2021 (cont.) 

Subsidiary Account for Fetherston Gardens Friends  

Balance Brought Forward:

(Fetherston Gardens) (D) 
$12,660.30 (D) 

   

Income    

Reverse external transfer  $202.35   

Reimbursement from WCCC Smallbiz account  $146.50   

Donation from Weston Creek Garden Club $50.00  

Interest $0.97   

Income (E) $399.82 (E) $399.82 (E) 

   

Income, Total (D + E)  $13,060.12 

   

Expenditure   

Adopt-a-Park Grant – Secret Garden Regeneration – 

pavers, path and plants 

$5,616.93  
   

16-17 CSIG Grant – repayment of unspent funds $168.17  

plants $281.59  

Garden consumables $547.19  

Garden hardware $480.23  

External transfer– unable to complete (see income)  202.35  

Payment for Weston Creek Community Council 

expenses in error (see income)  

146.50 
 

Fees $28.00   
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FGF Total Expenditure: (F) $7,470.96 (F) $7,470.96 (F) 

   

   

Balance for FY 2020-2021 ((D + E) - F)  $5,589.16 

Represented by balance of   $5,589.16 

 Reverse external transfer – payee provided incomplete account number and the transaction could not be 

completed. The money was subsequently returned to account. 

 Payment for a mobile dongle and access ($99.00) and parking for attendance at ACAT hearings ($47.50) made 

in error from the Fetherston Gardens account. A total of $146.50 was transferred from the WCCC Smallbiz account 

to the Fetherston Gardens account to correct the error. 
 

 

 

Janice Paull 

WCCC Treasurer 

30 June 2021 
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WESTON CREEK COMMUNITY COUNCIL MAY/JUNE NEWSLETTER 

 

Weston Creek Community Council invites you to an informative evening with an environmental theme. Come hear about interesting topics from 
enthusiastic people who are experts in their field. 

 

EVENT: PUBLIC MEETING. DATE: WEDNESDAY, 26 MAY 2021 
TIME: 7:30 PM. LOCATION: Weston Creek Community Centre off Parkinson Street. SPEAKERS:   

 Yolandi Veermar of Wombat Rescue. 
 Kirsten Duncan from the Conservation Council talking on the gas free ACT project. 

 Alice Hathorn Talking about the progress with the Fowles Street Park regeneration project. 
 

The meeting will be webcast live via our Facebook pages, and the video recording will remain available for viewing later, 
on these pages. We will try our hardest to have questions that we receive through the Facebook pages presented to the 
speakers. Please let us know your questions through the comments field. 

  
WCCC COMMITTEE: We take this time to thank Tom Anderson, who has resigned as Chairman of the Council from 19th 
May 2021. Also, two committee members, Ms. Pat McGinn and Mr. Ryan Hemsley, for their time and contributions on the 
WCCC Committee. Ryan has resigned to continue his work for the setting up of the Molonglo Valley Community Council. 
We wish him all the best. 

 
WCCC BUDGET LETTER TO CHIEF MINISTER: We are currently finalising our reply in response to the Chief Minister’s 
invite for the ACT 2021/22 Budget around three key themes: job creation and infrastructure investment; response to 
climate change and supporting the most vulnerable; charting the path back to a balanced Territory Budget. We continue 
to advocate for on behalf of the community, including road and cycling improvements to the entire Cotter Road corridor, 
having an air quality monitoring station in Weston Creek, complete rehaul of planning laws for the ACT, and 
improvements to Brierly Street. 
 

SAVE COOLO PARK: We continue to support the community with their request to have the affectionately named Coolo 
Park rezoned to green open space. Council has written to the Murrumbidgee Representatives and Mr. Mick Gentleman 
(Planning Minister) giving a strong argument for this to happen. We look forward to their responses.  

 
CANBERRA HOSPITAL MASTER PLAN: We have heard your concerns at two meetings now about the deficiencies in the 
Canberra Hospital Master Plan, including issues of poor access, lack of green reflective spaces, medical services available, 
and how is the hospital planning benchmarked against best practice. The consultation report was not available at our April 
meeting as expected. It has now been released. 
 

INQUIRY INTO RENEWABLE ENERGY INNOVATION IN THE ACT: This inquiry is being Chaired by Dr Marisa Paterson 
MLA and Council is making a submission. Council considers the vital ingredients to the success of true energy innovation 
for the whole of Canberra community, rests with strong foundations of working partnerships with all stakeholders. 
Initiatives need to be underpinned by a long term, ambitious and achievable plan that includes measurable objectives and 
milestones and supported by solid governance arrangements.  
 

SKATE PARK: Keep an eye out for a stunning mural at the skate park and stay tuned for more consultation on public art.  
If you’re a local street artist, please contact us regarding the Surface Street Art Festival, slated for November. 
 

 

www.westoncreek.org.au 

info@westoncreek.org.au 

PO Box 3701 

Weston Creek ACT 2611 

Telephone (02) 6288 8975 
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JUNE MEETING: We are listening! WCCC will share an overview of your concerns about parking, traffic, transport. 
Minister Chris Steel will outline what is happening and answer your questions. We have also made a submission to the 
Duffy shops consultation. Richard Henty from Transport Canberra and City Services will outline what feedback they were 
given and the next steps forward.  
 

The Weston Creek Community Council (WCCC) continues to be a forum for residents to meet, share ideas and to convey 
concerns to government. We are non-partisan, advocating for the best services and facilities for the people of Weston 
Creek. Come join us! You can find membership forms on our Website.  
 
Floriade in the Burbs 2021 – See attached flyer 
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Canberra Times article 7 June 2021 

Floriade bulbs planted ahead of festival in 
Spring 

  
Alex Crowe 

 

Latest News 

 
 Grace, Taylor, Emerson, and William Gower, joined their friends Teagan and Neve Fitzpatrick in 
planting bulbs at Chapman for Floriade. Picture: Sitthixay Ditthavong 
On a usually unremarkable verge, a group of volunteers got their hands dirty for the love of 
Floriade on Sunday. 

The Weston Creek residents were one of several groups who collected their bulbs this week, part of 
initial efforts to start planting ahead of the spring festival. 

This year, Floriade will celebrate its 34th year with the return of a huge display in Commonwealth 
Park, alongside popup flower gardens across the city. 
The Weston Creek Community Council have put their collective hands up to transform the corner 
of Streeton Drive and Darwinia Terrace in Chapman. 

Taking part for the second time, the council has twice the flower power as it had last year, with 
volunteers planting 4000 bulbs in the raised garden beds they shovelled in on Saturday. 

Come spring, the busy intersection on the edge of Rivett will contain 12 different garden beds for 
passers-by to enjoy, the students of Chapman Primary School up the road and neighbouring 
government housing for the elderly among them. 
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Part of Floriade Community, the initiative was introduced last year as part of Floriade: 
Reimagined, a way of hosting Canberra's nationally renowned flower festival in the time of the 
pandemic. 

Reimagined saw more than 80 community groups plant bulbs and annuals to help create a tulip 
trail through Canberra's suburbs last year. 

Following the success of the modified event's inaugural year, an additional 300,000 bulbs and 
annuals have been made available for the community to plant in 2021. 
Weston Creek Community Council's Simone Hunter said their garden was an example of 
government, business and the public coming together to fund, donate and orchestrate. 

ACT government put up money for the plants. The community group did the labour. The Council 
paid for the garden beds. Cooleman Court provided the gloves and ACT Liberal MLA Giulia Jones 
gave up her old election post stakes, Ms Hunter said. 

"We're drawing on the resources we've got within the community to put together something really 
special that means a lot to everyone in this area. We have people who walk past everyday who just 
absolutely love this site." 

Ms Hunter said the coronavirus pandemic had kept us home and made us care more about our 
backyards and Floriade Community helped ensure that sense of sovereignty was ongoing. 

 
 
 Marty Moss and Weston Creek Community Council's Simone Hunter. Picture: Sitthixay Ditthavong 

"It's all about getting the community together to participate and connect with one another," she 
said. 

To rediscover old connections and to make new connections and basically just work on a project 
together that keeps us busy and in contact over the winter months, with a wonderful result for the 
broader community come Spring." 
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A team of around 50 people will take turns tending to the gardens over winter, though weeding is 
not restricted to Western Creek Community Council members, Ms Hunter said. 

Connecting through a "bush telephone" service, the volunteers from Chapman, Rivett, Stirling and 
surrounds will be part of a network across Canberra sharing the labor of the flower beds over the 
next few months. 

READ MORE: 
 Tulip Top Gardens set to re-open in spring 
 Floriade 2021: Floriade will return to Commonwealth Park 
 Floriade's reimagined model pays off in suburbia 
Ms Hunter said the return of the festival to Commonwealth Park was an important get for the 
events community and the city as a whole, with Floriade contributing more than $44 million to the 
ACT visitor economy in 2019. 

The way she saw it, Floriade Reimagined was here to stay alongside it. 

"In some form, these community events are the way of the future," she said. 

 Floriade runs from September 11 to October 10. 
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■ Established 1991 ■ ABN: 52 841 915 317 ■ Weston Creek Citizens Council Inc. ■ Reg. no. A 2637 
The Weston Creek Community Council receives support and funding from the ACT Government. 

 

 

 

Want to know more about what is happening locally with our shops, car parks and transport? Then come along to the Weston Creek 
Community Council public meeting. We will also be live streaming from our Facebook pages. 

EVENT: PUBLIC MEETING. 

DATE: WEDNESDAY, 30 JUNE 2021 
TIME: 7:30 PM 

LOCATION: WESTON CREEK COMMUNITY CENTRE off PARKINSON STREET 
 

AGENDA  
7:30pm Welcome to members and guests  
 
7:40 pm PRESENTATIONS and Q & A 

 

 7:40pm What we have heard, WCCC overview of your 
concerns: parking, traffic, transport. 

 
 7:50 pm Minister Chris Steel 

Minister for Transport, Minister for city Services, 

Minister for Roads and Active Travel. 
 

 8:20 pm Mr. Richard Henty 

       Transport Canberra and City Services 

       Duffy Shops upgrade.    
 

 Q & A  

  

8:45 pm Murrumbidgee MLAs  
 
9:00 pm GENERAL MEETING:  

Minutes of the meeting of 26 May 2021 
Business arising from the minutes of the meeting of May 2021. 

Treasurer’s Report  

 Main Account  

 Fetherston Gardens Account                                                             
General Business 

 Report from the Interim Chair 

 Have your say, feedback from the floor. 
9:30 pm: Close of meeting  

       

Next Meeting: Wednesday 28 July 2021 
Community Centre Weston 

Guests: Neighbourhood Watch and Crime Stoppers. 
We have also invited ACT Police. 

www.westoncreek.org.au 

info@westoncreek.org.au 

PO Box 3701 

Weston Creek ACT 2611 

Telephone (02) 6288 8975 
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